

Effect of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on the growth performance and meat quality of Kadakhnath chicken.

> KAZI ASMANY Roll No.0119/04; Reg. no.617 Semester: January-June, 2020

A thesis presented in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Master of Science in Animal and Poultry Nutrition degree.

Department of Animal Science & Nutrition Faculty of Veterinary Medicine Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University Khulshi, Chattogram4225, Bangladesh

September 2022

## Authorization

I thus declare that I am the thesis's single author. I also give Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU) permission to lend this thesis to other institutions or persons for academic research purposes. I also give the CVASU permission to photocopy or otherwise reproduce the thesis, in whole or in part, at the request of other institutions or people for the purpose of scholarly research.

Within the limitations of the technology available, I, the undersigned, and the author of this work, declare that the electronic copy of this thesis delivered to the CVASU library is a correct copy of the print thesis submitted.

Kazi Asmany

September, 2022



# Effect of feed additives turmeric powder and zinc supplement on the growth performance and meat quality of Kadakhnath chicken.

# KAZI ASMANY

## Roll No.0119/04; Reg. no.617

Semester: January-June, 2020

This is to confirm that we have reviewed the aforementioned Master's thesis and found it to be complete and satisfactory in all areas, with all amendments requested by the thesis evaluation committee completed.

-----

Professor Dr. Jannatara Khatun Supervisor Department of Animal Sciences and Nutrition, CVASU -----

Professor Dr. Goutam Buddha Das Co- supervisor Vice-Chancellor, CVASU & Professor ,Department of Animal Science and Nutrition, CVASU

Chairman of the Examination committee

Department of Animal Science and Nutrition Faculty of veterinary medicine Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Science University Khulshi, Chattogram-4225,Bangladesh September,2022

#### Acknowledgement

I am grateful to Allah for enabling me to successfully finish the research work and write the dissertation for the degree of Master of Science (MS) in Animal and Poultry Nutrition at Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University's department of animal Science and Nutrition.

Dr. Jannatara Khatun, Professor, Department of Animal Science and Nutrition, CVASU, was an excellent supervisor and mentor to me. Working under her direction was truly a wonderful and unforgettable experience for me. I'd like to thank Priunka Bhowmik, Assistant Professor, Department of Animal Science and Nutrition, CVASU, for her unwavering support during the research time. I understand that finishing the thesis work without their constructive guidance was nearly impossible.

It gives me great pleasure to express my heartfelt gratitude to my co-supervisor honourable vice chancellor, Dr. Goutam Buddha Das, Professor, Department of Animal Science and Nutrition, CVASU, for his wise counsel, academic assistance, recommendations, and inspiration. I'd want to express my gratitude to every one of the Department of Animal Science and Nutrition's teacher's team for their valuable advice and recommendations throughout the experiment.

I am grateful to all of the employees at CVASU's Department of Animal Science and Nutrition for their assistance in completing my research work in both the poultry shed and the nutrition lab.

Last but not least, I want to show my gratitude to my elder sisters as well as my buddy Chandan Nath, researcher, for their encouragement, advice, and assistance in helping me finish my research.

Author, September, 2022

# List of contents

Contents	Page number
Abstract	1
Chapter I: Introduction	2-6
1.1Objectives of the study	6
Chapter II: Review of Literature	7-18
2.1. Background	7
2.2. Kadakhnath	8-10
2.2.1. Highlights of kadaknath	9
2.2.2. Nutrition Value comparison with Hybrid Poultry	9
2.2.3. Characteristics of kadakhnath	10
2.3. Turmeric	10-17
2.3.1. Health benefits of turmeric	11
2.3.2. Chemical composition of turmeric	11-12
2.3.3. Phytochemical composition of turmeric plants	12-13
2.3.4. Nutritional composition of Turmeric	13-14
2.3.5. Uses of turmeric	14
2.3.6. Effect of turmeric in Poultry nutrition	14-15
2.3.7. Effect of turmeric on growth performance and	15-16
2.3.8. Effect of turmeric on Serum lipid profile of poultry	16
2.3.9. Effect of turmeric on nutrient digestibility of poultry	16-17
2.4. Zinc supplement on poultry nutrition	17-18
2.4.1. Effect of Zn supplement on growth Performance of pou	ltry 17-18
2.4.2. Effect of zinc supplement on meat quality of poultry	18

# Page number

Chapter III: Methodology and Materials	19-31
3.1. Study area and duration	19
3.2. Preparation of Turmeric Powder	19
3.3. Preparation of 0.5 % Zinc Supplement	19
3.4. Design of the experiment	20-21
3.5. Preparation of the Shed	22-23
3.5.1 Housing and cleaning	22
3.5.2. Sanitation	22-23
3.6. Bird's management	23-24
3.6.1. Brooding period	23
3.6.2. Feeding	23
3.6.3. Vaccination	23-24
3.7. Diet of the Experiment	24-25
3.8. Data collection	25
3.9. Laboratory Analysis	25-29
3.9.1. Carcass Characteristics	25
3.9.2 Meat PH Measurement	26
3.9.3. Drip loss percentage of meat	26-27
3.9.4. Cooking loss percentage of meat	27
3.9.5. Proximate analysis of meat	28
3.9.6. Oxidative Stability of meat	28-29
3.9.7. Amino acid analysis	29
3.9.8. Fatty acid analysis	29
3.10. Cost- benefit analysis	30

Contents

3.11. Statistical analysis	30
Chapter IV: Results	32-45
4.1. Composition of experimental diet with or without additives	32
4.2. Growth performance of broiler	33- 35
4.3. Carcass Characteristics of kadakhnath poultry	36
4.4. Determination of meat quality	37-45
4.4.1. Proximate composition of kadakhnath meat	37
4.4.2. Drip loss percentage of meat	38
4.4.3. Cooking loss percentage of kadakhnath poultry	39
4.4.4. Meat P <sup>H</sup> measurement	40
4.4.5. Oxidative stability of meat	41
4.4.6. Fatty acid analysis of kadakhnath poultry	42-43
4.4.7. Amino acid analysis of Kadakhnath poultry	44
4.4.8. Cost Benefit analysis of Kadakhnath poultry	45
Chapter V: Discussion	46-52
5.1. Growth performance	46-48
5.2. Carcass characteristics	48-49
5.3. Meat quality	49-52
5.4. Fatty acid and amino acid	52
Chapter VI: Conclusion	53
Chapter VII: Recommendation	54
Chapter VIII: Limitation and future perspectives	55
Chapter IX: References	56-75
Appendix	76-78

Contents

# List of image

Image	page number
Image 2.1: Kadakhnath bird	8
Image 3.1: Dried Turmeric	20
Image 3.2: Turmeric powder	20
Image 3.3: Day on Chick on Chick career box	20
Image 3.4. Brooding of Chicks	20
Image 3.5: Weighing of bird	22
Image 3.6. Housing of Birds	22
Image.3.7. Sample collection	26
Image. 3.8. Weighing of sample	26
Image 3.9. Sample in Airtight Zipper Bag	27
Image 3.10: Hexane layer collection for fatty acid test	31
Image 3.11: Titration for CP analysis	31

# List of Figures

Figure	page number
Fig.4.1. Effect of turmeric powder and zinc supplementation	
on Kadakhnath meat drip loss percentage	38
Fig.4.2. Dietary turmeric powder and zinc supplement effect	
on cook loss percentage of Kadakhnath meat	39
Fig.4.3. Dietary turmeric powder and zinc supplement	
effect on P <sup>H</sup> of Kadakhnath meat	40
Figure .4.4. Dietary turmeric powder and zinc supplement effect on	
oxidative stability of Kadakhnath meat. Figure.4.5. Dietary turmeric powder and zinc supplement	41
effect on amino acid profile of Kadakhnath meat.	44

# List of tables

Tables number	Page
Table 3.1. Layout of the experiment	21
Table 3.2 Ingredients of basal diet per 100 kg feed	24-25
Table 4.1. Proximate composition of experimental diet with or without	
zinc supplement and turmeric powder.	32
Table. 4.2. Kadakhnath growth performance in weekly basis	33
Table 4.3. Overall growth performance of kadakhnath poultry	
on turmeric powder and zinc supplement diet.	34
Table. 4.4. Effect of turmeric powder on carcass characteristics	
of Kadakhnath poultry	36
Table 4.5. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement	
on kadakhnath meat composition	37
Table.4.6. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement	
on kadakhnath meat fatty acid composition.	42-43
Table.4.7. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement	
on cost benefit of kadakhnath meat.	45

#### Abstract

The purpose of the research is to evaluate how dietary supplements of zinc as a micro mineral, and turmeric powder as a herbal growth promoter, affected the Kadakhnath bird's ability to grow as well as its carcass features, meat quality, amino and fatty acid composition. Day one Kadakhnath Chicks were randomly allotted into five experimental groups: T0, T1, T2, T3 and T4 dietary groups. T0 is control group with basal diet whereas T1, T2,T3,T4 were given basal diets enriched with 1% turmeric powder, 1.5% turmeric powder, 1% turmeric powder with 0.5% zinc supplement and 1.5% turmeric powder with 0.5% zinc supplement respectively. Experimental trail was lasted for 75 days. The dietary treatments had no significant effect on the body weight gain and feed intake of the Kadakhnath bird at trail period. Feed conversion ratio of treatment group improved significantly (p<0.05) in comparison with control group. Turmeric powder with or without zinc supplement increase significantly (p<0.05) dressing weight of kadakhnath bird compared to control group. Turmeric powder with or without zinc supplementation does not affect the drip loss % of kadakhnath meat, but it significantly (p<0.05) reduces the pH, cooking loss percentage, and TBARS value of the meat. Through experimentation, it has been found that consuming zinc supplements along with turmeric powder significantly improves the oxidative stability of Kadakhnath meat. The amino acid and fatty acid composition of kadakhnath meat is unaffected by the dietary addition of turmeric powder with or without a zinc supplement. The cost-benefit analysis of the kadakhnath bird revealed that farmers may have benefit from including turmeric in poultry diets. In conclusion, adding of 1.5% turmeric powder in diet will improve FCR, meat quality and combined diet of turmeric and zinc will improve meat oxidative stability.

Keywords: Kadakhnath chicken, Turmeric powder, Zinc, Growth performance, Meat quality, Amino acid.

#### **Chapter I: Introduction**

The most significant and technologically advanced sector of Bangladesh livestock industry is poultry industry. Food security and meeting the need for high-quality animal protein are both significant goals of poultry meat. Poultry meat is a fantastic source of protein, which is necessary for growth and development. Additionally it is a source of vital micronutrients and vitamins for human body. It is discovered that the contribution of poultry meat to Bangladesh's is 37% of overall meat output. About 22-27% of the nation's overall supply of animal protein comes from chicken (Hamid et. al., 2017). With an existing population of 525 Million birds, broiler chicken is the most produced and consuming variety within the poultry industry. In Bangladesh the fastest-growing market in recent years has been local Sonali chicken, which contains a fair amount of meat content. The strongest consumer perception is for the native Deshi chicken, which is also the priciest. However, number of factors likes including chicken immunity, health, and productivity, pose a threat to the poultry industry's potential future expansion. The current environment and the industry's strategic future will continue to be significantly hampered by consumer confidence, product quality and safety, product types, and the introduction and re-emergence of diseases. Poultry is a direct source of zoonotic and food borne illnesses. The poultry business faces a significant problem in the eradication, elimination, and control of zoonotic and food borne infections. Additionally, a significant problem will continue to be the risks to the public's health from eating foods with high antibiotic residues. The idea of chicken production nowadays considers the relationships between animal immunity, wellbeing, and health in addition to illness prevention (Hafez et. al., 2020).

In order to boost the rate of feed absorption and reduce the incidence of mortality brought on by a pathogen attack, poultry producers are utilizing growth-promoting and diseasepreventive antibiotics to help chickens develop quicker in the least amount of time. The beneficial gut micro biota may become dysfunctional as a result of antibiotic use, and poultry infections may become more resistant. Many studies across the world have identified these antibiotic residues in poultry meat, and they are thought to be one of the potential contributors to human pathogens developing resistance to these antibiotics. There is major worry over the presence of antibiotic residues in poultry meat and meat products that are above the maximum allowable levels (Khurram et. al., 2018). Antibiotic usage outside of therapeutic purposes results in a higher residual buildup than is medically required, which raises the risk of antimicrobial resistance. Human resistance is thought to emerge as a result of ingesting leftover medications through animal food products (such as meat and milk). In addition, commensal bacteria from animals are frequently present in fresh meat, which can act as a reservoir for resistant genes that can be transferred to pathogenic bacteria in people (Landers et.al., 2012). According to studies, more than 50% of broiler and layer meat samples taken from various parts of Bangladesh contained antibiotic residues (Sattar et. al., 2014 and Sarker et. al., 2018). According to a different study by Faiz and Bashe (2011), most of the pathogenic bacteria become resistant due to widely use of antibiotics. Bangladesh's high rate of antibiotic resistance poses a local, regional, and international hazard (Ahmed et. al., 2019).

On the other hand, black meat from the Kadaknath breed is incredibly tasty and wellliked. Tribals and adivasis residing in Madhya Pradesh's Jhabua District use its more valuable flesh to treat a variety of human illnesses. However, this requires an accurate scientific analysis. Kadaknath birds are extremely expensive and in high demand throughout the entire region. Additionally considered to be excellent sources of protein are meat and eggs (Rao and Thomas, 1984). Although the meat of this breed has an unattractive appearance, it has a delicious flavor (Panda and Mahapatra, 1989). The Oxygen radical absorbance capacity assay's determination of the antioxidant capacity of Kadaknath meat and a better ability to block the production of advanced glycation end products were used to prove the meat's superior functional properties (AGEs). The discovery of relatively undiscovered nutritional and functional benefits of Kadaknath meat has the potential to alter the way that people view meat intake (Sharma et. al., 2022). Kadaknath are used to reproduce exceptional germplasm that is suitable for home poultry farming because of their endurance, tolerance of heat and stress circumstances, and adaptation to warm and humid climates(Kumar et.al., 2021). But this particular breed of chicken is not raised in Bangladesh under different climatic conditions. Thus, reared this kadakhnath chicken in Bangladesh under different climate conditions is important to know the feasibility of this chicken in Bangladesh.

Development of alternatives to antibiotics for food-producing animals, particularly poultry and livestock, is urgently needed in the agricultural sector. One of the many medicinal plants that hold promise for use as natural feed additives in chicken diets is turmeric (Curcuma longa Linn.). (Lagua et. al., 2021). The effects of turmeric are comparable to those of strong antibiotics like ciprofloxacin and cephalosporins. Consequently, turmeric can be used topically and internally to treat infections (Aiman, 2021). The use of turmeric powder as feed additives and supplements have been recommended as an alternative to antibiotics for broiler chicken production ( Lagua et. al.,2021). Finding new potent antiviral chemicals is necessary since most viral diseases lack effective treatments, antiviral drug resistance is on the rise, and current antiviral therapies are expensive (Tomei et. al., 2005 and Lemoine et.al., 2013). Additionally, not all antiviral treatments are well-tolerated, efficient, and satisfying (Clercq, 2002). Therefore, the growing need for antiviral agents will be more prominently displayed. Researchers are interested in plants as a rich source of phytochemicals with a variety of biological activities, including antiviral properties (Jassim and Naji, 2003 and Zorofchian et. al., 2013). Curcumin, a plant product, has a wide range of antiviral efficacy against many viruses, according to research. It has been proposed that antiviral and anticancer drugs should target the inosine monophosphate dehydrogenase (IMPDH) enzyme because of its rate-limiting role in the de novo production of guanine nucleotides. Curcumin which is a deraivatives of turmeric powder is recommended to use as a strong antiviral drug (Dairaku et. al., 2010).

Moreover, one of the major problems facing the poultry business is immune suppression, which has a negative impact on the ability of birds to produce and results in significant financial losses. However, zinc plays a critical role to increase bird immunity and ultimately protecting them from significant economic losses (National academy press, 1994) Zinc is a micromineral that is essential for proper nutrition and is involved in a

variety of biochemical processes, including gene expression and amino acid metabolism. In times of stress, zinc has been proven to be essential for the production of the antioxidant enzyme superoxide dismutase. However, broiler meat quality has improved due to the antioxidant activity of Zn supplementation, which also increases the meat's shelf life and improves its physical properties. Zinc has also been shown to promote the growth of immune cells by releasing cytokines and stimulating cell division.Zinc have well-known antibacterial properties (Jesline et. al., 2015). Due to their effectiveness and selectivity, especially in biological and pharmaceutical applications, nanostructured materials like zinc are gaining a lot of attention (Wu et. al., 2003; Fortner et. al., 2005 and Li et al., 2005). The ability of zinc to combat bacterial infections by producing nanoparticles is one of the least researched applications (Luo et. al., 2007). Birds require zinc as a trace mineral. It serves as a co-factor for the functioning of up to 300 enzymes and is essential for the appropriate development of glands, metabolic processes, and growth in chickens (Salim et. al., 2008). By improving intestinal epithelial shape and performance, zinc oxide has reduced the usage of antibiotics in feed and affected how nutrients are absorbed and digested by birds (Li et. al., 2001). Therefore, the overall zinc concentration in chicken feed, including supplementary zinc and endogenous zinc, ranges from 120 to 150 mg/kg (Cui et. al., 2004).

A prospective breed to be developed for commercial poultry is Kadakhnath. The key issue with the development of this breed is that it is not consumer-cost-effective due to high rearing costs. The performance of the growth was boosted by the herbal growth enhancer turmeric powder, in addition to microminerals Zinc improves bird FCR. There is less research on Kadakhnath bird with supplementary diet. An experiment should conduct to improve FCR and commercialize the kadakhnath bird by using supplemental diets . Zinc is the most significant bioactive component for poultry and according to the availability and shelf life of herbal plants; turmeric may be the best choice as a supplement. Thus, it is hypothesized that synergistic effect of supplementation turmeric and zinc to Kadakhnath bird diet would increase growth performance, have favorable effects on improve meat quality and increase shelf life of meat.

# 1.1Objectives of the study

- > To check the feasibility of commercial Kadakhnath farming in Bangladesh.
- To observe the synergistic effect of herbal growth promoter and zinc supplement on growth performance of kadakhnath bird.
- > To study the quality of black meat.
- > To analyze the amino acid and fatty acid profile of black meat.

#### **Chapter II: Review of Literature**

This chapter describes background of a new Variety of poultry and effects of herbal plants (turmeric powder) and zinc supplement on it in term of growth promoter and prebiotics. This study mainly concern about antibiotic residue and growth performance on herbal growth promoter with or without micronutrients.

#### 2.1. Background

In developing countries, the fastest growing agricultural sub-sector is poultry. Growing populations driven the demand for meat and eggs. So why the global poultry sector is expected to grow. In this context, the sector is facing few challenges. Poultry is a major asset to poverty alleviation (Mottet and Tempio, 2017). Controlling diseases, maximum production, quality of product, and reasonable production costs have been the main challenges of the poultry sector. The main goal of poultry sector meeting per capita consumption and welfare to humans necessitates continuous efficiently and less the antibiotics application (Hafez et al., 2020). Commercialize the Poultry Sector damaging severely backyard poultry rearing which was the strength of food security and key to poverty alleviation in the developing countries including Indian sub continent. Currently, interest in native chickens grows due to focus on natural healthy foods. Demand for Kadaknath black meat has increased in ongoing Corona pandemic crisis due to the expectations of the improved immunity status of human beings( Sharma et. al., 2022). Through stimulating immunity and enhancing resistance to stress Herbal Growth promoter can improve health (Krauze, 2021).

#### 2.2. Kadakhnath



Image 2.1: Kadakhnath chicken

Kadakhnath - a special indigenous chicken of Indian sub continent. It originated from Madhya Pradesh, India. According to NBAGR India have 19 breeds of native chickens; kadaknath is one among them. The tribes of Bhil and Bhilala reared them for centuries. Its specialty is flesh and internal organs are black. So that it Known as Black Meat Chicken (BMC) and also the only black meat chicken breed of Indian sub continent. Kadakhnath found in 3 varieties feathers color, such as: Jet black, penciled and golden. It called hardy breed because of adaptability to all climatic conditions and highly resistance to disease. Its meat has distinctive taste, texture and flavor. Kadakhnath meat is rich in protein. Protein percentage is around 25%, also rich source of amino acid. Lower in cholesterol; 0.73 to 1.37% while broiler chicken has 13 to 25%. Kadakhnath meat is rich with vitamins B1, B2, B6, B12, C and E.Also good source of niacin, calcium, phosphorus, iron, nicotinic acids etc. Black meat has some medicinal Properties. It is refer as medicinal food in nervous disorder, habitual abortion, sterility, abnormal menstruation (menoxenic). Melanin pigment in black meat has sildenafil citrate, which act as vasodilator and increase blood flow to the heart and acts as Viagra. Eggs of kadakhnath rich in amino acids and less in cholesterol so that good food source for old age people and growing kids. Its eggs also help to treat migraine, asthma, acute or chronic inflammation of the kidney (nephritis) etc. (Nadamadum Vangi Nattu Kozhi (Tamil); Narayanan and Duraisamy). It Protects Eyesight and boost energy (Singh, 2019).

#### 2.2.1. Highlights of kadaknath

- > Protein Percentage is 25% which is higher of all chicken breeds.
- ▶ Fat content is found to be lowest of all chicken breeds 0.73-1.05%.
- Rich in minerals like niacin, calcium, iron, nicotinic acid and vitamins B1, B2, B6, B12, C and E.
- ➢ High Levels of 18 amino acids.
- Source of Antioxidant.

(Source: Singh, 2019. Health benefits of kadakhnath chicken.)

#### **2.2.2. Nutrition Value comparison with Hybrid Poultry**

No	Properties	Other	Kadaknath
		Chicken	Chicken 25- 27%
		Breeds	
1	Protein	18-20 %	25-27%
	content		
2	Fats	13-25 %	0.73 - 1.03%
3	Cholesterol	218.12 mg /	184.75 mg/
		1000mg	1000mg
4	Linolenic	21%	24%
	Acid		

[Source: Kadaknath Chicken Farming, Health Benefits to disadvantages, Agrikit, 2020]

#### 2.2.3. Characteristics of kadakhnath

Docs (Day Old Chicks) are bluish to black color with irregular dark stripes over the back. Adult plumage varies from silver and gold-spangled to bluish-black without any spangling. The skin, beak, shanks, toes and soles of feet are slate like in color. The comb, wattles and tongue are purple. Internal organs show intense black coloration. Blood is darker than normal due to melanin deposition. Average adult body weight of cock is 1.5 kg and hen is 1.0 kg. The eggs are light brown in color and average egg weight: 46.8 gms (Singh, 2019). It gains body weight of 865 g at 20 weeks. First egg is high (185 days) and the egg production potential of this breed is somewhat less (50 to 55 eggs in 40 weeks). Egg production up to 52 weeks was 90 to 105 eggs and the annual egg production is in the range of 120 to 140 eggs. This breed has good fertility (80 to 85%) and hatchability (83 to 90%) status, and low yolk to albumen ratio (0.51). lean meat (0.11 to 0.52% abdominal fat) as compared to broiler meat (1.74 to 1.85% abdominal fat) (Haunshi and Prince, 2021).

#### 2.3. Turmeric

Turmeric (Curcuma longa) grows in forests of Southern Asia including India, Indochina, Indonesia, nearby Asian countries, and Pacific Islands including Hawaii. Turmeric was use as traditional culinary and medicinal purpose going back to pre-history (Debjit Bhowmik et al., 2009).Turmeric is a ground root that belongs to Curcuma longa and curcumin is its active compound. Curcumin; yellow pigment that gives turmeric its yellow color. For centuries in cooking and cosmetics turmeric is being used. Turmeric has antioxidant, antimicrobial, anticancer and anti-inflammatory properties. By inhibiting lipoxygenase and cyclooxygenase, thereby reduce the leukotrienes, thromboxanes, and prostaglandins level. Topical turmeric use in psoriasis and wound healing, but limited use due to color and odor (Bolognia, 2020). Curcuma genus has a old history of medicinal applications (Akarchariya et al., 2017; Dosoky and Setzer, 2018). This genus has 120 species; among thoses, Curcuma longa L. (Curcuma; Turmeric) is widely recognized; it grow mostly in warm climate throughout the world (Wu, 2015). However, taxonomic identity of the genus is difficult due to its short period of flowering (Jadhao and Bhuktar,

<u>2018</u>). The most used part of this plant is rhizomes (Lakshmi et al., 2011), composed of variety of compounds, including the bioactive non-volatile curcuminoids (curcumin, dimethoxy-, and bisdemethoxy-curcumin) and the compounds present in volatile oil (mono and sesquiterpenoids) (Itokawa et al., 2008; Lobo et al., 2009). Turmeric is mainly use as spice and food additive, widely used to palatability and storage stability through its specific yellow color, taste, and antioxidant potential (Surojanametakul et al., 2010). Turmeric rhizomes' organoleptic features are yellowish color, aromatic odor, and slightly bitter taste (Duraisankar and Ravindran, 2015).

#### 2.3.1. Health benefits of turmeric

According to (Bhowmik et al., 2009). Some Benefits of Turmeric powder are-

- Natural antiseptic and antibacterial agent, use in severe degree burns
- Natural liver detoxifier
- Natural anti-inflammatory without the side effects
- ✤ Natural painkiller and cox-2 inhibitor
- Natural treatment for arthritis and rheumatoid arthritis
- Stop the growth of new blood vessels in tumors.
- Heal and assists in remodeling of damaged skin
- Use in treatment of psoriasis and other inflammatory skin conditions.

#### **2.3.2.** Chemical composition of turmeric

Chemical Composition	Chemical Composition	
	Percentage	
Ar-Curcumene	6.11	
Zingiberene	2.97	
α- Bisabolene	1.48	
α- Sesquiphellandrene	2.81	
Benzene	1.48	

61.79
61.79
12.48
1.44
0.84
1.42
3.45
1.00

[Source: Liju et Al., 2011]

Quality of commercial turmeric products can be varied. In rhizomes, powders, and extract ( curcumin ) products found curcumin, demethoxycurcumin , and bisdemethoxycurcumin . On the other hand, turmeric oil and oleoresin products have ar-turmerone ,  $\alpha$ -turmerone , and  $\beta$ -turmerone at high volume( Li et.al.,2011).

#### 2.3.3. Phytochemical composition of turmeric plants

Alkaloid in turmeric powder could be used as management of cold (Gill et. al., 1992). Turmeric plant can lower cholesterol, preventing cytotoxins and have antioxidant property due to having saponin and flavenoid. Tannin correct diarrheal and dysentery types disorder (Okwu et al., 2006). Flavenoids have ability to scavenge biological radicals and superoxide anions radicals and also exhibits anti - inflammatory, anti - allergic, analgesic and antioxidant properties (Gill et. al., 1992). Tannin exerts antimicrobial activities by iron deprivation and hydrogen bonding (Scalbert, 1991). Tannins are astringent in nature and treat intestinal disorders (Dharmananta, 2003).

Phytochemicals	<b>Composition (%)</b>	
Alkaloid	0.76±0.01	
Saponin	$0.45 \pm 0.00$	
tannin	$1.08\pm0.02$	
Sterol	0.03±0.01	
Hydrogen cyanide	$0.82 \pm 0.00$	
Flavenoid	$0.40 \pm 0.01$	
Phenol	$0.08 \pm 0.03$	

(Source: Ikpeama et al., 2014)

Principle /	Nutrient value	Percentage of RDA (%)
constituents	(kcal)	
Energy	354.0	17
Carbohydrates	64.90	50
Total fat	9.88	33
Protein	7.83	14
Cholesterol	0	0
Dietary fiber	21	52.50
Vitamins		
Pyridoxine	1.80	138
Folates	39	10
Niacin	5.14	32
Riboflavin	0.23	18
Vitamin A	0	0
Vitamin C	25.90	43
Vitamin E	3.10	21
Vitamin K	13.40	11
Electrolytes		
Potassium	2525	54

# 2.3.4. Nutritional composition of Turmeric

Sodium	38	2.50
Minerals		
Manganese	7.83	340
Calcium	183	18
Copper	603	67
Iron	41.42	517
Magnesium	193	48
Phosphorus	268	38
Zinc	4.35	39.50

(Source: Ahmad et. al, 2020)

#### 2.3.5. Uses of turmeric

- Turmeric is one of the most popular functional foods (Tsuda et. al.,2018)
- Used in dyslipidemia, stomach disorders, arthritis, and hepatic diseases (Tayyem et. al., 2006)
- Act as tonic supplement ( Delgado-Vargas, 2002)
- Have antifungal, antimutagenic, and antibacterial activities (Leung et. al., 1980)
- Help inflammatory and degenerative eye disorder (Mazzolani et. al., 2013)
- Due to its antioxidant and anti-inflammatory effects it is used in Chronic and acute Kidney disease (Gupta et al., 2013).

#### 2.3.6. Effect of turmeric in Poultry nutrition

Turmeric has many positive effects on animal health and welfare. Turmeric is an excellent feed additive for animal nutrition and health due to its bioactive compounds antioxidant, anti-inflammatory, antibacterial and antiviral properties (Dono, 2013). Egg production and Lactobacillus spp. counts increase in Layer bird at diets with turmeric powder supplementation (Kosti et al., 2020). Turmeric show DPPH radical-scavenging activity and among all plants additives, turmeric exerts the highest total antioxidant capacity, followed by cumin (Durrani et al., 2006).Turmeric aid to baby chicks or chickens suffering wry neck through providing Vitamins B and E (Lisa ,2015). Turmeric efficacy of in poultry feed alternative to antibiotics are proved by recent feed trail (Dono,

2013). Turmeric rhizome powder in poultry diet check morbidity and mortality of chickens (Al-Kassi et. al., 2011). Turmeric in poultry feed cause no public health issue (Dono, 2013). Moreover, it is proved that Turmeric (Curcuma longa) as feed additives effective against aflatoxin-induced mutagenicity (Soni et al., 1992). Turmeric supplementation on poultry diet enhanced the growth rate and weight of chickens effectively (Kumari et al., 2007). Turmeric stimulates digestive system and promotes intestinal lipase, maltase, and sucrose activities and also secretion of pancreatic amylase, lipase, chemotrypsin and trypsin (Platel and Srinivasan, 1996).

# 2.3.7. Effect of turmeric on growth performance and meat quality of poultry

An inclusion of turmeric at 500g /1 kg feed increased body weight of birds, this significant increase in body weight may be due to antioxidant activities of turmeric (Durrani et. al., 2006).Turmeric powder can improved meat quality (i.e., decreased lightness values, increased pH and dry matter content of meats (Kanani et. al., 2017). The fact is turmeric can enhance nutrient metabolism and improve digestion. Turmeric are rich in atsiri oil and curcumin content (Al-Sultan and Gameel, 2004). Atsiri oil improves digestive tracts function (small intestine) and stimulates digestive enzymes production which results in improved digestion and nutrients metabolism (Darwis et al., 1991). No influence on body weight gain and daily feed intake of chickens at different dietary treatments. Broilers exhibited better feed efficiency which fed turmeric supplemented diets. A significant decrease in abdominal fat is shown in study (Nouzarian et.al., 2011). Turmeric has potentiality on growth performance, dressing percentage and cholesterol profile in broilers, and its use at 1.5% turmeric through feed show most effective results (Muhammad Arslan et. al., 2017). Turmeric powder can be recommended as feed additives alternative to antibiotics for chicken (Lagua et. al., 2021). Turmeric has positive effect on meat quality and it increase carcass weight and dressing percentage (Raskar et.al., 2019). Detrimental effects of heat stress on meat quality can remove by dietary supplementation of turmeric (Kanani, et. al., 2017). Turmeric positively affected important quality parameters including cooking loss and TBARS (Kilic et. al., 2021). Turmeric powder increasing dietary supplementation levels except for the 10 gm/kg level has positive effects on bird's performance and gut microflora. Two gm turmeric powder per kg feed may be an alternative to feed antibiotics due to positively improved FCR (Ürüşan et. al., 2017). Zinc has antioxidant activity which plays major roles in poultry nutrition (Prasad, 2007).

#### 2.3.8. Effect of turmeric on Serum lipid profile of poultry

Turmeric increases the high density lipoprotein (HDL) of serum (Kermanshahi et. al., 2006). Turmeric regulates total cholesterol level, total triglycerides level and very low density lipoprotein (VLDL) levels of blood serum (Kermanshahi et. al., 2006).Serum lipid profile can easily regulate through turmeric supplementation on diet (Chattopadhyay et. al., 2004). Turmeric powder inclusion on diet reduces serum triglyceride concentration ( Nouzarian et. al., 2011). Curcumin improves liver activites through reducing serum triglycerides, LDL cholesterol and blood glucose levels (Emadi and Kermanshahi, 2007; Seo et al., 2008; Gandhi et al., 2011).

#### **2.3.9.** Effect of turmeric on nutrient digestibility of poultry

Turmeric powder has potentiality on increasing nutrient digestibility; therefore, it can be an alternative for feed additive in broiler chicken diet (Sundari et al., 2014). Small intestine structure plays an important role in nutrient digestion and absorption (Lenhardt and Mozes, 2003); however, manipulation in the feed may alter villus height to crypt depth ratio, and absorptive area of intestine (Fasina et al., 2006).The supplementation of Turmeric may decrease gut inflammation, increase nutrients digestibility and metabolic activity (de Beer et al., 2008; Buchanan et al., 2008; Giannenas et al., 2010). Curcumin lowered the intestinal crypt depth. 200 mg/kg feed curcumin supplementation enhanced the growth performance and fat metabolism, and increased villus absorptive area of small intestine, resulting in improved nutrients absorption(Rajput et al., 2013). Use of turmeric powder at 2.5, 5 or 7.5 g/kg diet improved egg production, egg quality, nutrient digestibility and serum metabolic profile. It may be referred as a feed additive in laying hens' nutrition. 5 g turmeric per kg of feed show best result.( Fawaz et. al., 2022). Digestibility of crude protein, crude fat, ash and the biological value of protein increased with increasing level of dietary turmeric ( Dalal and Kosti, 2018).

#### 2.4. Zinc supplement on poultry nutrition

Zinc is mandatory for growth, maintenance, bone development, feather development and enzyme structure in poultry. In the total diet Zinc inclusions level of poultry diet is 0.012% to 0.018%. Zinc supplementation in poultry increase immunity and resistance to disease. Dietary organic zinc supplementation at 80 mg/kg in old broilers and 40 mg /kg in young broilers improves immunity (Jagzap, 2018). For the poor growth and abnormal bone development in chicks zinc deficiency was responsible (O'Dell et al., 1958).

#### 2.4.1. Effect of Zn supplement on growth Performance of poultry

Increasing levels of dietary zinc up to 10 mg /kg feed cause increase in feed intake quadradically (Ao. et al., 2006). Zinc sulfate (ZnSO<sub>4</sub>) at 40mg/kg chicks increased feed intake linearly (Batal et al., 2001.) Supplementation of zinc up to20 mg/kg responded quadradically to weight gain, feed intake, and feed efficiency. (Huang et al., 2001). On the other hand, zinc supplemented diets from zinc-amino acid complexes (ZnAA) improved feed efficiency in poultry (Hess et al., 2001 and Rossi et al., 2007) showed that increasing level of dietary organic zinc in diets have no influence on body weight gain and carcass yield. With inorganic zinc (Mehring et al., 1956; Wang et al., 2002) and with organic zinc (Hudson et al., 2004a) indicated that growth performance, leg abnormalities, and meat yields were unaffected when dietary zinc were provided in excess of the NRC (1994) recommendations of 40 mg/kg. By contrast, many investigators have added zinc in inorganic form of zinc (Mehring et al., 1956; Edwards and Baker, 2000), or in organic form of zinc (Johnson and Fakler, 1998; Burrell et al., 2004; Yu et al., 2005), to diets of poultry and observed improvement in growth performance. As a result, Zn is commonly added to the diets of commercial broiler chickens to ensure optimal growth and health, particularly during the early stages of development (Sandoval et al., 1997; Smith, 2003). Organic sources of trace minerals have become increasingly popular in animal nutrition in recent years due to their higher bioavailability and potential to reduce environmental emissions as compared to inorganic sources (Pierce et al., 2005).

#### 2.4.2. Effect of Zn supplement on meat quality of poultry

The intestine microbial population, carcass properties, and oxidative stability of chicken meat were all improved by Zn supplement (Khajeh Bami et. al.2020). Chickens fed Zn-NPs and 70ZAAC had a lower pH value in their breast flesh. The current findings revealed that 30BZMO type of Zinc monooxide, as a recommended Zn-NPs treatment, aided growth, enhanced humoral immunity, breast meat Zn content, and meat quality, while lowering MDA levels in breast meat (Eskandani et. al., 2021). Different Zinc treatments had no effect on the yellowness index of the breast meat or drip loss (P>0.05). The control group's breast meat pH (24 hours after slaughter) was substantially higher than the other Zn treatment groups (P<0.05) (Eskandani et. al., 2021). Furthermore, part of the Zn effect on immunological function could be mediated by the chicken's ability to protect itself from oxidative damage and/or improve its antioxidative status (Osaretin and Gabriel, 2009; Akhavan-Salamat and Ghasemi, 2019). According to the current findings, broiler chickens' immune systems were improved by 70 mg Zn amino acid complex (70ZAAC) and all Zn-NPs levels (except for 50BZMO treatment), which was presumably due to higher Zn bioavailability of these sources of Zn (Ao. et al., 2009). Supplemental zinc enhanced the redness of the breast muscle and the pH of the thigh muscle in broilers, lowered shear force in the thigh muscle, and reduced drip loss in the breast and thigh muscle (Liu et al., 2011). Zn supplementation reduced cooking loss in the breast and thigh in this study, indicating that Zn, like other Zn sources, can improve broiler meat quality. Improved meat quality can be explained in part by meat's increased antioxidant capacity at the same time. MDA is the principal end product of reactive oxygen species' lipid peroxidation, and a rise in MDA concentration is a key indicator of lipid peroxidation (Sumida et al., 1989).

#### **Chapter III: Methodology and Materials**

#### 3.1. Study area and duration

This experiment was performed from July, 2020 to September 2020. This time of year, is chosen because Kadakhnath breed originated from a hot humid country. Birds were observed in Department of Animal Science and Nutrition poultry research shed. It was reared in cage to see growth effect of rearing of free-range bird. July to September month considered as summer season In Bangladesh. In that season average temperature was 30°C to 38°C, humidity is around (74-79) %. The laboratory test was done in postgraduate (PG) lab of the Department of Animal Science & Nutrition of Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU). The experimental trail was running for 75 days to see the growth performance of bird.

#### **3.2. Preparation of turmeric powder**

About 10 kg turmeric was collected from local market. After collection it was washed through tap water & finally washed using filtrate water. Washed turmeric was dried in Sun for 7 days. During drying Period Precaution was followed to avoid contamination. Dried turmeric was grinded through electrical grinder. Grinded turmeric was filtrated through 0.2mm sieve. Finally store in airtight zipper bag and keep in drum to avoid getting wet.

#### **3.3.** Preparation of 0.5 % zinc supplement

Vita zinc is a product contain 5 % zinc were collected from central store of Techno Drugs ltd. located in Segunbaghicha, Dhaka.







Image 3.2: Turmeric powder



Image 3.3: Chick on Chick career box



**Image 3.4: Brooding of Chicks** 

#### **3.4.** Design of the experiment:

Seventy five Kadakhnath day old chicks of both sex (female and male) were purchased from Kamrul Poultry Hatchery, Shibpur, Narsingdi. Chick was transported to Chittagong in chick box maintaining proper temperature and other precaution through a car. Immediately after arrival on poultry shed, chicks were checked for any kind of abnormalities and weight was taken for maintain uniform flock size. Chicks were divided into five dietary treatment groups and each group were further divided into three replication in a completely randomized design. Treatment group were as: T0 = control (basal diet), T1 = basal diet + 1% dried turmeric powder, T2 = basal diet + 1.5% dried

turmeric Powder, T3 = basal diet+ 1% dried turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc supplement and T4 = basal diet + 1% dried turmeric powder + 0.5% zinc supplement. Each group replication group was marking as R1, R2 and R3 with 5 birds per each replication.

Treatment	<b>Birds per Replication</b>		Total Birds /
S			Treatment
T0=BD	R1	5	
	R2	5	15
	R3	5	
T1=BD+	R1	5	
1% DTP	R2	5	15
	R3	5	
T2=BD+	R1	5	
1.5% DTP	R2	5	15
	R3	5	
<b>T3= BD</b> +	R1	5	
1% DTP+	R2	5	15
0.5% ZS	R3	5	
<b>T4= BD+</b>	R1	5	
1.5%	R2	5	15
DTP+	R3	5	
0.5% ZS			
Total			=75

 Table 3.1. Layout of the experiment

[Note: BD= Basal diet, DTP= dried turmeric powder, ZS=Zinc supplement]

#### **3.5.** Preparation of the Shed

#### 3.5.1 Housing and cleaning

At first, Poultry Research Sheds floor of Animal Nutrition Department and all rearing cages of shed were thoroughly washed with running tap water and finally through bleaching powder mixed water. Then shed were left for dry for 2 to 3 days. During drying all windows were kept open for proper ventilation. By 40% formaldehyde and potash fumigation process was done. Kadakhnath chicks are free range bird but for study purpose Birds were kept in wire cages. Cages are arranged in treatment wise without any bias. Each cage had separate drinker and feeder. Cages area was (3.5 Ft. \*1.63 ft. for 5 Birds). At starter period paper sheet was provided and feed were given into round feeder up to two weeks.



Image 3.5: Weighing of bird



Image 3.6. Housing of Birds

#### 3.5.2. Sanitation

Potassium per manganate containing footbath was kept on shed entrance to avoid any kind of biosecurity hazard. Feeder and drinker were washed regularly before providing feed and water. Unauthorized person was strictly prohibited in shed during study period.

Bird's fecal wastage was cleaned once daily and in last two weeks of study twice daily. Proper ventilation was maintained to avoid ammonia storage from fecal wastage.

#### 3.6. Bird's management

During study period, standard guideline of birds rearing was maintained thoroughly. Points are described below

#### 3.6.1. Brooding period

Brooder cage floor was occupied by dry and clean newspaper to avoid any kind of injury from wire cages. Newspaper sheet was changed in every three day up to21 days. During study period two cages were separated through hardboard. During brooding it was done for proper lighting, after brooding it was done to avoid cannibalism. Lighting was done by 60-watt lamp in each rearing cage. Brooding temperature was 95°F, 90° F, and 85°F respectively. Room temperature was monitored by room thermometer.

#### 3.6.2. Feeding

As per experiment layout, basal diet was provided to Control (T0) group. In 1% and 1.5% dried turmeric powder was added to the T1 and T2 experimental group with basal diet on DM basis respectively. In, T3 and T4 experimental group 0.5% zinc supplement with 1% and 1.5% dried turmeric powder respectively added to basal diet on DM Basis. Commercial broiler starter feed from Nahar Feed Ltd., Bangladesh was provided to chicks up to 21 days. Then commercial broiler grower feed was given until 74 days. Feed was in broken pellet form. Ad libitum fresh water was provided to birds.

#### 3.6.3. Vaccination

Birds were vaccinated against New Castle disease and Infectious Bursal disease. On 5<sup>th</sup> day of experiment each bird was vaccinated with New Castle Disease (ND) vaccine

named BCRDV through eye drop and booster dose were provided on 24<sup>th</sup> day. On 11<sup>th</sup>day of experiment infectious bursal disease vaccine were provided as eye drop and booster dose was provided on 20<sup>th</sup> day. BCRDV vaccine were purchased from DLS (Department of livestock services), Chattogram and infectious bursal disease vaccine were purchased from Incepta Drugs ltd., Bangladesh.

#### **3.7.** Diet of the Experiment

Two different Rations respectively Broiler Starter and Broiler grower feed were purchased from Nourish feed company, Bangladesh. The experimental herbal growth promoter (Turmeric powder) and zinc supplement were added according to experiment layout. The ingredients and nutrient compositions are shown in table 3.2

Ingredients	Starter (0-21) days	Grower (22-74) days
Maize	51	55
Rice polish	4	4
Vegetable oil	2.5	1
Soyabean meal	27.12	26
Groundnut Cake	12	10
Oyster shell Grit		
DCP		
Salt		
Methionine	3.38	4.0
l- lysine		
Vitamin -		
mineral premix		
Toxin binder		
Coccidiostat		
Enzyme		

#### Table 3.2 Ingredients of basal diet per 100 kg feed

Nutrient composition of basal diet					
Ingredients	Starter (0-21) days	Grower (22-74) days			
ME(Kcal/Kg)	2900	3050			
Crude Protein%	22	20			
Crude Fiber %	3	2.7			
Ether Extract%	4.7	5.5			

\*Vitamin- mineral premix composed of Vitamin A, Vitamin D3, Vitamin E, Vitamin K3, Vitamin B12, Niacin, Thiamin, Folic acid, Riboflavin, Choline Chloride, Manganese, Selenium, Iron and Cobalt.

#### 3.8. Data collection

Amount of feed intake and weight gain were recorded at every week throughout the whole study period. Weight gain was calculated through deducting previous week weight gain. Feed intake also calculated through deducting previous week feed supplied and residue. Finally, FCR value calculated through dividing feed intake amount by weight gain. FCR value calculated for every 2 weeks. At 74th day 3 birds from each treatment (bird per replication) group were sacrifice for meat quality study purpose. Blood sample were collected using vacutainer tube and meat sample was collected in air tight zipper bag separately for different laboratory test.

#### **3.9.** Laboratory Analysis

#### **3.9.1.** Carcass Characteristics

At, 74th day one bird randomly selected from each replication group for slaughter purpose. Bird were slaughtered by severing jugular vein through sharp knife. When a bird bled adequately, it was scaled and feather was removed. After removing feather birds were eviscerated. Dressed bird's weight is taken. Weight of head, shank, breast meat, thigh meat, drumstick, liver, abdominal fat, heart, spleen, gizzard was taken separately.

#### 3.9.2 Meat pH Measurement

By using a portable pH meter (ORION STAR A211 Thermo Scientific, Indonesia) the thigh muscle's pH was measured. One gram meat sample weighed and taken into falcon tube. 10 ml cold deionized water added to the falcon tube and homogenized by using a homogenizer (VELPR Scientificia OV5) for 30 seconds. According to American meat science Association (AMSA) each sample pH was measured three time and make average reading for each replication (Hunt et al., 2012).

#### 3.9.3. Drip loss percentage of meat

After processing of sample, meat sample from breast muscle was weighed and recorded as initial weight (W1). Then meat sample was preserved in airtight zipper bag at 4°C in a refrigerator. After 48 hours of preservation, meat sample were taken from Zipper bag and kept 20 minutes in room temperature for thawing. After thawing, meat sample was gently pressed with tissue paper to suck the water in sample and 2<sup>nd</sup> weight (W2) was measured. Then weighed sample again preserved at 4°C for further 48 hours. After preservation period the process of taking sample



Image 3.7. Sample collection



Image 3.8. Weighing of sample


Image 3.9. Sample in Airtight Zipper Bag

weight was repeated and final weight measured as (W3). According to Honikel (1998), the drip loss percentage was calculated by the following formula:

Drip loss % = [(W1-W2)/W1] \*1002<sup>nd</sup>Drip loss Percentage was measured by following formula; Drip loss % = [(W2-W3)/W2] \*100

# 3.9.4. Cooking loss percentage of meat

The initial weight of a sample of thigh meat was obtained and recorded (W1). The samples were then stored at -20°C in an airtight zipper bag until laboratory analysis was completed. Meat samples were left at room temperature for 30 minutes on the day of lab examination to allow for thawing. After thawing, the complete sample was immersed in an 80°C water bath (WB-22, Witeg, Germany) for 20 minutes with a labeled zipper bag. After cooking with the Zipper Bag, the meat sample was removed from the Water bath and allowed to cool at room temperature. Then the meat sample was carefully wiped with tissue paper to remove any excess water from the zipper bag. Meat sample weight was taken and recorded as W2. According to (Khatun et al., 2018) cooking loss measurement formula is

Cooking loss% = [(W1-W2)/W1] \*100

## **3.9.5.** Proximate analysis of meat

Preserved sample at -20°C were taken out from refrigerator and kept at room temperature for thawing. After 30 minutes, meat sample weighed and approximate analyses (Crude protein (CP), Dry matter (DM), Ether extract (EE), Total ash (TA) was carried out at Animal Nutrition Laboratory of CVASU as described by (AOAC, 2005).

## 3.9.6. Oxidative Stability of meat

After dressing meat sample were preserved at -20°C. At the day of analysis preserved sample was kept in room temperature about one hour for thawing. Thawed meat was used to measure thiobarbituric acid reactive substances (TBARS) values. TBARS procedure was done at 1<sup>st</sup>, 3<sup>rd</sup>, 5<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> day respectively according to the modified method of (Du and Ahn, 2002). TBARS values are expressed as micromoles of malondialdehyde (MDA) per 100 gm of meat sample.

Stock solution 1- For 500 ml of stock-1 solution need 402 ml distilled water, 98 ml phosphoric acid and 100 mg trichloracetic acid

Stock solution 2 -for 250 ml stock-2 solution need 250 ml distilled water and 0.18 gm dihydroxi-2-mercaptopyridine.

## Procedure TBARS test are described below:

4 g of meat sample in falcon tube 10 ml of distilled water were added 10 ml stock solution-1 was added Homogenize with a homogenizer (VELPR Scientificia OV5) Filtrated through Whatman No. 1 filter paper 2 ml filtrate solution was taken to another falcon tube ↓ 2 ml stock solution-2 was added ↓ Kept on water bath (WB-22, Witeg, Germany) at 80°C for 30 minutes ↓ After withdrawn from water bath kept on room temperature for cooling ↓ The absorbance was than measured by Spectrophotometer (UV-2600, UV-VILS Spectrophotometer, Shimadzu) at 530 nm

## 3.9.7. Amino acid analysis

Briefly, 1 gm sample were dissolved in 50 ml 6N HCl solution and kept at 110°C for 22 hours. Prepared sample was taken to HPLC vial and put into HPLC machine as described Shimadzu technologies notebook.

# **3.9.8. Fatty acid analysis**

Fatty acid was measured through direct fatty acid methyl ester method by the GC system ( standard Agilent technologies 7890A, USA). Briefly, in a 15 ml falcon tube 1 gm sample was taken. Then 0.7 ml of 10 N KOH and 6.3 ml of methanol was added into tube. In a water bath all the tubes were incubated at 55°C for 1.5 hours. Vigorous hand shaking during incubation need in every 30minutes for 10 seconds. After 1.5 hours, cooled the tubes in cold water. Then 0.58 ml 24N H2SO4 was added into falcon tube. Again incubated at water bath for 1.5 hours at 55°C. Here also need vigorous hand shaking 3 times in 1.5 hours. Again, cooled in cold water and 3 ml hexane was added and centrifuged at 3000 rpm for 5 minutes. Hexane layer was separated through pasteur pipette into GC vials. GC vials with sample placed in sample chamber of gas chromatography machine. After analyzation of sample GC machine show graph. Data from this graph were further analyzed through statistical analyzer software.

## **3.10.** Cost- benefit analysis

Expense of feed, chicks, labor, vaccine and miscellaneous cost was included as cost of cost of experiment, money got from bird selling considered as benefit from experiment. Finally, total cost was deducted from total income and calculate the profit amount.

Total cost= Feed cost+ Chick Cost+ Vaccine cost+ Miscellaneous cost

Total Income = Total Weight of bird \* Price per 1 kg wt.

Total Profit= Income-Total cost

## **3.11. Statistical analysis**

All data were put into Microsoft Excel sheet (MS Excel, 2009, USA) and analyzed by GLM (General Linear Model) procedure at SAS Institute Inc. (2007). Duncan's multiple range test were used to examine significant differences among the treatment means (Duncan, 1955). All data was expressed as mean with standard error (SE). The level of statistical significance was presented at p<0.05.



Image 3.10: Hexane layer collection for fatty acid test



Image 3.11: Titration for CP analysis

# **Chapter IV: Results**

This chapter describes findings of the effect of feed additives (turmeric powder a herbal growth promoter and zinc supplement) on the growth performance, carcass characteristics, meat quality of Kadakhnath chicken such as proximate composition, cooking loss, drip loss, meat pH, oxidative stability, fatty acid profile and amino acid composition.

## 4.1. Composition of experimental diet with or without additives

The chemical composition of experimental diets shown in table 4.1. From the Result it has been observed that crude protein percentage of feed increase about 1% after adding turmeric powder in feed. Further adding of zinc supplement in feed does not increase crude protein percentage. Crude fiber percentage increase significantly after adding turmeric powder but after adding zinc supplement crude fiber percentage decrease slightly. At 1% turmeric powder in feed showed lowest ash percentage. EE% of feed increase significantly in adding more percentage of turmeric powder and zinc supplement.

Table 4.1. Proximate composition of experimental diet with or without zincsupplement and turmeric powder.

Para	Treatment								
meter	T0 T1		T2	T2 T3		Р			
	( Mean±SE)	( Mean±SE)	( Mean±SE)	( Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)				
DM%	84.5±0.22	84.61±0.07	85.15±0.08	85.00±0.14	85.83±0.60	0.08			
CP%	18.08±0.01	19.54±0.61	19.89±0.21	19.48±0.74	19.72±0.82	0.33			
CF%	3.25 <sup>ab</sup> ±0.14	3.47 <sup>a</sup> ±0.03	3.50 <sup>a</sup> ±0.00	3.00 <sup>b</sup> ±0.00	3.25 <sup>ab</sup> ±0.14	0.02			
Ash%	4.72 <sup>a</sup> ±0.59	3.74 <sup>b</sup> ±0.52	4.96 <sup>a</sup> ±0.17	4.999 <sup>a</sup> ±0.16	4.59 <sup>a</sup> ±0.05	0.04			
EE%	5.84 <sup>b</sup> ±0.01	5.97 <sup>b</sup> ±0.29	6.02 <sup>b</sup> ±0.01	6.69 <sup>a</sup> ±0.19	6.89 <sup>a</sup> ±0.19	0.01			
NFE%	68.11	67.28	65.63	65.84	65.55				

 $^{a,b,c}$  in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.SE=Standard error. CP=Crude protein; DM=Dry matter; CF=Crude fiber; EE= Ether extract. NFE=Nitrogen free extract.

# 4.2. Growth performance of kadkhnath chicken

The impact of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on weekly growth performance of kadakhnath bird was shown in table 4.2.

Para	Treatment							
mete	TO	<b>T1</b>	T2	Т3	<b>T4</b>	valu		
r	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	e		
		Average we	ekly weight gai	n/bird				
2 <sup>nd</sup>	73.92±6.50	$76.25 \pm 4.38$	80.62±6.26	75.00±1.33	79.53±3.54	0.83		
week								
<b>4</b> <sup>th</sup>	141.33 <sup>b</sup>	155.25 <sup>b</sup>	197.60 <sup>a</sup>	161.73 <sup>b</sup>	$169.20^{ab} \pm 2.44$	0.02		
week	$\pm 4.07$	$\pm 8.66$	±17.33	±4.12				
6 <sup>th</sup>	$222.83 \pm$	$244.17 \pm$	$248.15 \pm$	$233.00 \pm$	$227.27 \pm$	0.73		
week	15.38	14.91	16.09	20.74	3.43			
8 <sup>th</sup>	183.17±2.1	216.83±5.6	$227.70\pm25.6$	216.13±15.6	215.60±11.3	0.32		
week								
10 <sup>th</sup>	$285.67 \pm$	$270.67 \pm$	$264.82 \pm 2.31$	252.11±8.37	230.80±15.19	0.09		
week	17.05	13.80						
Avera	ge weekly feed	intake/bird						
2 <sup>nd</sup>	$168.08 \pm$	$173.50 \pm 1.00$	$174.97 \pm 6.28$	175.87±1.27	$177.67 \pm 0.996$	0.32		
week	2.53							
4 <sup>th</sup>	$277.08^{a} \pm$	$274.00^{ab} \pm$	250.90 <sup>bc</sup> ±	234.87 °	237.93 ° ±2.18	0.01		
week	1.82	2.31	16.32	$\pm 2.47$				
6 <sup>th</sup>	$428.50 \pm$	$416.00 \pm 5.88$	381.77 ±29.47	$387.87\pm$	$378.80 \pm 21.90$	0.43		
week	11.09			29.27				
8 <sup>th</sup>	459.33±	$463.33 \pm$	$381.10 \pm 30.78$	$440.50 \pm$	$396.13 \pm 30.65$	0.47		
week	30.40	33.65		57.66				
10 <sup>th</sup>	796.00	675.17 <sup>b</sup>	585.17 <sup>bc</sup> ±	630.50 <sup>b</sup> ±	511.47 °	0.000		
week	<sup>a</sup> ±8.25	±7.07	50.91	16.69	$\pm 28.37$	3		
FCR								
2 <sup>nd</sup>	2.31±0.22	2.29±0.15	2.19±0.11	$2.35 \pm 0.03$	2.24±0.09	0.92		
week								
4 <sup>th</sup>	$1.96^{a} \pm 0.04$	1.77 <sup>b</sup> ±0.09	$1.27^{d} \pm 0.03$	$1.46^{\circ} \pm 0.05$	$1.41 ed \pm 0.03$	0.000		
week 6 <sup>th</sup>	1 03+0 11	1 71+0 08	1 54+0 12	1 67+0 03	1 66+0 07			
u wook	1.95±0.11	1.71±0.08	1.34±0.12	1.07±0.05	1.00±0.07	0.09		
8 <sup>th</sup>	2.51 <sup>a</sup> ±0.20	2.15 <sup>ab</sup> ±0.21	1.69 <sup>b</sup> ±0.06	2.02 <sup>ab</sup> ±0.12	1.85 <sup>b</sup> ±0.17	0.04		
week								
10 <sup>th</sup> week	2.81±0.19	2.51±0.11	2.21±0.18	2.50±0.04	2.25±0.25	0.17		

Table. 4.2. Kadakhnath growth performance in weekly basis

 $^{*a,b,c}$  in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 = control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2 = 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder 0.5% zinc and T4 = 1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc. FCR = feed conversion ratio, SE = Standard error.

The average daily gain (ADG) of the birds grew significantly in the T2 fed birds throughout the third and fourth weeks of age, while it increased numerically in the T1, T3, and T4 fed birds compared to control group over the same time period. Feed intake decreased significantly in the T3 and T4 treatment groups throughout the third and fourth weeks of experiment, while it decreased marginally in the T1 and T2 treatment groups. Feed intake decreases more significantly in T2 and T4 diet groups than in T1 diet group during the finisher phase of 9th and 10th week of age. At the 9th and 10th week of experiment, the T1 and T3 diet groups exhibit a less substantial drop in feed intake.

FCR considerably improved in the T2 diet group during the third and fourth weeks of experiment. T4, T3, and T1 treatment groups all demonstrate improved feed conversion ratios. The feed conversion ratio in the T2 and T4 diet groups improved significantly between the 7th and 8th week of experiment. T1 and T3 diet groups, on the other hand, have marginally better FCR.

Parame	Treatment						
ter	T0(Mean± T1		T2	T2 T3		Val	
	SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	ue	
Inwt/b	27.25±0.52	$26.00 \pm 0.80$	26.20±0.53	26.93±0.55	7.13±0.48	0.48	
( <b>g</b> )							
Fwt/b	944.17±	$985.83 \pm 10.83$	$1045.08 \pm$	$964.92 \pm 43.17$	$946.20 \pm 9.04$	0.07	
( <b>g</b> )	18.05		23.14				
wtgain/	916.92±	959.83±	$1018.88 \pm$	937.98±	919.07±	0.07	
b(g)	17.92	11.18	23.05	43.54	9.48		
TFI/b	2129.0ª±	2002.00 <sup>ab</sup> ±	1773.90 <sup>bc</sup> ±	1869.60 <sup>bc</sup> ±	1702.00 <sup>c</sup>	0.01	
( <b>g</b> )	16.87	42.25	92.01	93.28	±83.12		
FCR	2.32 <sup>a</sup> ±0.04	2.09 <sup>b</sup> ±0.03	$1.74^{d}\pm0.07$	$1.992^{bc} \pm 0.007$	1.85°±0.11	0.00	
						04	

Table 4.3. Overall growth performance of kadakhnath chicken onturmeric powder and zinc supplement diet.

\* <sup>a,b,c</sup> in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc. FCR=feed conversion ratio, SE=standard Error, Inwt= Initial Weight, Fwt= Final weight, Wt. gain= Weight gain, TFI= Total feed intake, b= Bird, g= gram. Table 4.3 shows the effect of turmeric powder on the overall growth performance of Kadakhnath poultry from day 0 to day 74 of the trial. The results revealed that the diets group had no significant differences in initial weight, final weight and weight gain (p<0.05). On the other hand, total feed intake and feed conversion ratio differ significantly (p<0.05) among diet groups. The T4 diet group has the greatest decrease in feed intake (p<0.05), while the other diet groups have only a minor decrease and no significance difference among T1, T2 and T3 groups.

However, all the treatment group show improved FCR than control birds but within treatments there is no significant difference. In this study, the T2 group's FCR improved the most with a 1.5 percent turmeric powder diet. Dietary groups T1, T3, and T4 exhibit substantial differences (p<0.05) of FCR improvement.

# 4.3. Carcass Characteristics of kadakhnath chicken

In table 4.4 summarizes the differences in carcass characteristics across the experimental birds

Paramet	Treatment							
er	ТО	T1	T2	Т3	T4	Р		
	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	(Mean±SE)	Value		
DW	57.73°±0.2	59.79 <sup>b</sup> ±0.5	62.10 <sup>a</sup> ±0.3	61.22 <sup>ab</sup> ±0.35	62.83 <sup>a</sup> ±1.2	0.001		
BMW	$26.39 \pm 1.10$	26.15±0.34	$26.69{\pm}0.96$	$27.37 \pm 0.48$	$27.16 \pm 0.86$	0.80		
TMW	$24.84 \pm 0.39$	$24.74 \pm 0.38$	$24.60 \pm 0.28$	25.91±0.31	$25.01 \pm 1.20$	0.61		
HW	$2.93 \pm 0.14$	$2.95 \pm 0.19$	3.16±0.18	$2.94 \pm 0.03$	$2.87 \pm 0.24$	0.79		
DruW	$20.29 \pm 0.70$	$20.86 \pm 0.34$	$20.24 \pm 0.17$	21.39±0.12	$20.09 \pm 0.75$	0.36		
Heart	$0.81 \pm 0.04$	$0.80 \pm 0.05$	$0.82 \pm 0.004$	$0.88 \pm 0.01$	$0.90 \pm 0.07$	0.39		
liver	$3.24^{ab} \pm 0.07$	$3.04^{b}\pm0.09$	$3.07^{b}\pm0.02$	$3.41^{ab} \pm 0.08$	$3.60^{a}\pm0.22$	0.03		
Gizzard	3.71±0.22	3.97±0.11	$3.96 \pm 0.02$	4.16±0.10	$4.14 \pm 0.15$	0.23		
Spleen	$0.10\pm0.01$	$0.09 \pm 0.01$	$0.10 \pm 0.004$	$0.10\pm0.001$	$0.10 \pm 0.01$	0.68		
Bursa	$0.26 \pm 0.02$	$0.28 \pm 0.01$	$0.27 \pm 0.003$	$0.29 \pm .001$	$0.28 \pm 0.013$	0.63		
AFW	$1.07 \pm 0.01$	$0.99 \pm 0.01$	$1.07 \pm 0.04$	$1.08\pm0.02$	$0.996 \pm 0.04$	0.08		

Table.4.4. Effect of turmeric powder on carcass characteristics ofKadakhnath chicken

\* <sup>a,b,c</sup> in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc. FCR=feed conversion ratio, SE=standard Error.BMW= Breast meat weight, DW=Dressed weight, HW= head weight, DruW= Drumstick weight, AFW= Abdominal fat weight.

In all of the dietary treatment groups, dressed weight and liver weight increased significantly (p<0.05). The diet including 1.5 percent turmeric powder plus or minus a zinc supplement resulted in the highest dressed weight. In contrast, a diet containing 1% turmeric powder resulted in a little increase in dressed weight.

In the meantime, liver weight increased more in the T3 and T4 dietary groups with zinc supplementation than in the T1 and T2 dietary groups without zinc supplement. In comparison to the control group T0, all of the dietary groups have a significant (p<0.05) variation in liver weight.

# **4.4. Determination of meat quality**

## 4.4.1. Proximate composition of kadakhnath chicken meat

The dietary effect of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on Kadakhnath meat composition was shown in Table 4.5. Dry matter and ether extract percentage of Kadakhnath meat show significant (p<0.05) difference on dietary treatment with turmeric powder and zinc supplement than control group. All dietary groups' dry matter increased significantly (p<0.05) than control group T0 but among dietary groups there is no significant difference.

On the other hand, ether extract percentage show more significant (p<0.05) difference in diet with both turmeric powder and zinc supplement.

Param	Treatment						
eter	TO	<b>T1</b>	<b>T2</b>	<b>T3</b>	<b>T4</b>	Р	
	(Mean±SE	(Mean±S	(Mean±S	(Mean±S	(Mean±S	valu	
	)	E)	<b>E</b> )	<b>E</b> )	<b>E</b> )	e	
DM%	$24.67^{b} \pm$	$26.87^{a}\pm$	29.53 <sup>a</sup> ±	$28.63^{a}\pm$	29.43 <sup>a</sup> ±	0.03	
	1.12	0.18	1.70	0.75	0.70		
CP%	$22.34 \pm$	$24.03 \pm$	$24.21 \pm$	22.40	23.92±0.	0.39	
	0.21	0.41	0.88	±1.23	00		
EE%	$0.72^{b} \pm$	$0.62^{c} \pm$	$0.78^{b}\pm$	$0.97^{\mathrm{a}}\pm$	$0.96^{a}\pm$	0.00	
	0.03	0.02	0.03	0.03	0.02	01	
Ash%	$0.17 \pm 0.14$	0.19±	$0.20\pm$	$0.21\pm$	$0.21\pm$	0.69	
		0.12	0.11	0.13	0.14		

Table 4.5. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement onkadakhnath meat composition

\* <sup>a,b,c</sup> in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n = 15).\* T0 = control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2 = 1.5% turmeric powder and T3 = 1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 = 1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc. FCR = feed conversion ratio, SE= Standard error CP = Crude protein; DM = Dry matter; EE= Ether extract.

# 4.4.2. Drip loss percentage of meat

Figure 4.1 shows the drip loss % of all experimental kadakhnath birds. There was no significant (p<0.05) difference in drip loss percentage across the dietary feeding groups. However, drip loss percentage in day 3 increased than drip loss percentage of day 1.



# Fig.4.1. Effect of turmeric powder and zinc supplementation on Kadakhnath meat drip loss percentage

\*The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n= 15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.

## 4.4.3. Cooking loss percentage of kadakhnath chicken meat

Figure 4.2 shows the effects of probiotics on cooking loss percentage of kadakhnath meat. It was observed that the percentage of cooking loss differed significantly between the experimental diet groups. All of the dietary groups have a lower percentage of cook loss than the control group T0, while the T1 dietary group with 1% turmeric powder has a great significant difference from the control group T0.





Kadakhnath meat

\*The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\*T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.

# 4.4.4. Meat P<sup>H</sup> measurement

The P<sup>H</sup> of kadakhnath meat was significantly influenced by the addition of turmeric powder and zinc. T4 group has the lowest P<sup>H</sup> of 5.009. In comparison to the control group T0, the other dietary groups show very little variation.



**Fig.4.3.** Dietary turmeric powder and zinc supplement effect on P<sup>H</sup> of Kadakhnath meat

\*The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.

## 4.4.5. Oxidative stability of meat

TBARS value of kadakhnath meat of control group and four treatment groups are showed below in figure 4.4. The entire treatment group showed significant reduction (p< 0.05) in TBARS values than control bird's meat.T2 treatment group showed the most significant reduction on TBARS value at the 7<sup>th</sup> day of storage at 4°c whereas all the treatment groups and control group did not show any significant variation in TBARS Value at day one. All the treatment groups show significant reduction (p< 0.05) in TBARS values at day 3, day 5 and day 7.





\*The data is presented as the average of three replicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.TBA day 1= TBARS value in day 1; TBA day 3= TBARS value in day 3; TBA day 5= TBARS value in day 5; TBA day 7= TBARS value in day 7.

# 4.4.6. Fatty acid analysis of kadakhnath poultry

Docosahexaenoate, Cis-5,8,11,14,17 Eicsapentenoate, Tridecanoate, Cis-9 oleic acid, Linoleate, Linolenate groups of fatty acid show slight significant( p<0.005) difference. Other types of fatty acid do not show any significant difference at dietary treatment with turmeric powder and zinc supplement. However palmitate reduced numerically with supplement turmeric powder and zincin diet.

In combined diet with turmeric and zinc saturated fatty acid decrease. Unsaturated fatty acid (UFA) decrease in turmeric powder diet and increase significantly (p<0.005) in combined diet of turmeric and zinc. Combined supplement of turmeric powder and zinc increased mono unsaturated fatty acid significantly.

Fatty Acid/						Р
Treatment	TO	<b>T1</b>	<b>T2</b>	<b>T3</b>	<b>T4</b>	value
	Mean±SE	Mean±SE	Mean±SE	Mean±SE	Mean±SE	
Butyrate	$0.38\pm0.1$		$0.54 \pm 0.5$			
	1	$1.23\pm0.2$	1	1.33±0.2	$1.21\pm0.2$	0.55
Laurate	0.21±0.0	$0.22 \pm 0.0$	$0.06\pm0.0$	$0.44\pm0.0$	$0.36\pm0.0$	
	7	6	1	6	6	0.17
Tridecanoate	$0.20^{cd} \pm 0$	$0.99^{a}\pm0.1$	$0.05^{d}\pm 0.$	$0.79^{ab} \pm 0$	$0.42^{b}\pm 0.$	
	.0	4	0	.1	1	0.0
Myrisate	$0.90\pm0.4$	$0.59 \pm 0.1$	$0.77 \pm 0.0$	0.36±0.1	0.31±0.1	
	0	3	9	3	3	0.75
Pentadecano	$1.84{\pm}1.6$	$0.11 \pm 0.6$	$0.11 \pm 0.0$	$0.76 \pm 0.6$	$4.47 \pm 0.6$	
ate	0	9	4	9	9	0.44
Palmitate	41.09±1	26.12±5.	29.27±2.	17.66±5.	18.01±5.	
	8.	5	1	5	5	0.81
Palmetoliate	$0.67 \pm 0.3$	$0.48\pm0.1$	$0.22\pm0.1$	$0.58\pm0.1$	$0.23 \pm 0.1$	
	1	1	9	1	1	0.74
Heptadecano	1.07±0.6	4.12±0.5	1.97±0.6	0.61±0.5	$0.64\pm0.5$	
ate	4	0	3	0	0	0.28
Cis-10						
Heptadecani	$0.64 \pm 0.0$	0.35±0.1	$0.21 \pm 0.1$	0.96±0.1	$0.72 \pm 0.1$	
c acid	5	1	3	1	1	0.14
Stearate	5.62±1.9	$4.49 \pm 1.2$	$4.99 \pm 4.8$	7.20±1.2	$8.48 \pm 1.2$	
	3	6	5	6	6	0.97
Elaidate	$0.27 \pm 0.0$	8.23±1.4	4.03±3.9		$0.25 \pm 1.4$	
	9	3	5	1.1±1.43	3	0.60
Cis-9 oleic	0.55 <sup>c</sup> ±0.	$0.25^{\circ}\pm3.3$	$0.20^{c}\pm0.$	16.7 <sup>b</sup> ±3.	20.5 <sup>a</sup> ±3.	0.00
acid	2	9	2	4	4	6

Table 4.6. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on kadakhnath meatfatty acidcomposition.

Linolaidiate	13.01±3.	4.16±2.3	$1.92{\pm}1.8$	0.51±2.3	$0.24\pm2.3$	
	8	2	9	2	2	0.29
Linoleate	0.36 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	0.11 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	$0.06^{b}\pm0.$	1.43 <sup>a</sup> ±0.	0.41 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	
	1	2	0	2	2	0.04
Arachidate	14.8±14.	39.93±6.	49.17±1.	23.14±6.	24.84±6.	
	5	5	2	5	5	0.42
Cis-11	$0.70\pm0.2$	0.25±0.1	$0.18\pm0.0$	$0.89 \pm 0.1$	$0.44 \pm 0.1$	
Eicosenoate	3	2	1	2	2	0.31
Linolenate	0.61 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	0.43 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	$0.36^{b}\pm0.$	5.40 <sup>a</sup> ±0.	$0.40^{b}\pm0.$	
	4	71	0	7	7	0.02
Heneiicoseno	$3.72 \pm 1.8$	$3.05 \pm 0.6$	$3.84 \pm 0.5$	0.93±0.6	1.39±0.6	
ate	6	3	7	3	3	0.70
Cis-11,14						
Eicosadioeni	$0.37 \pm 0.1$	$0.39 \pm 0.1$	$0.06 \pm 0.0$	$0.89 \pm 0.1$	$0.50\pm0.1$	
cc acid	7	1	3	1	1	0.21
Cis-8,11,14						
Eicosatrienoi	$0.30 \pm 0.0$	$0.07 \pm 0.0$	$0.22 \pm 0.1$	$0.63 \pm 0.0$	$0.45 \pm 0.0$	
c acid	8	8	9	8	8	0.51
Erucate	$0.53 \pm 0.1$	$0.28\pm0.1$	$0.19 \pm 0.0$	$0.86\pm0.1$	$0.70\pm0.1$	
	4	0	2	0	0	0.17
Cis-5,8,11,14						
Eicosatrienoi	9.25±1.7	3.10±1.7	$1.02\pm0.9$	10.82±1.	10.41±1.	
c acid	7	5	8	8	8	0.12
Cis-						
5,8,11,14,17						
Eicsapenteno	0.23 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	$0.08^{b}\pm0.$	$0.07^{b}\pm0.$	0.93 <sup>a</sup> ±0.	0.34 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	0.04
ate	07	12	03	12	12	35
Nervonate	$0.92 \pm 0.2$	$0.59 \pm 0.3$	$0.22 \pm 0.1$	2.40±0.3	$2.00\pm0.3$	0.08
	4	3	9	3	3	3
Docosahexano	1.71 <sup>c</sup> ±0.	$0.40^{d}\pm 0.$	$0.26^{d}\pm0.$	2.7 <sup>a</sup> ±0.3	2.30 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	0.00
ate	1	38	1	8	4	1
	$66.8^{\circ}\pm0.$	$78.28^{b}\pm 5$	$87.15^{a}\pm0$	$52.9^{d}\pm 5.$	$59.0^{d}\pm 5.$	0.00
SFA	8	.1	.9	1	1	5
	33.2 <sup>b</sup> ±0.	$21.72^{c}\pm 5.$	$12.85^{d}\pm0$	47.1 <sup>a</sup> ±5.	41.0 <sup>a</sup> ±5.	0.00
UFA	8	1	.8	1	1	5
	$19.7 \pm 1.8$	16.38±2.	10.48±2.	12.05±2.	$4.98 \pm 2.1$	
PUFA	3	17	55	1	7	0.19
	$13.51^{b}\pm$	5.34 <sup>bc</sup> ±5.	2.37 <sup>c</sup> ±1.	35.07 <sup>a</sup> ±	$36.03^{a}\pm$	0.01

\* <sup>a,b,c</sup> in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three duplicate groups of five birds each. (n=3).\*T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.SFA= Saturated fatty

acid, UFA= Unsaturated fatty acid; Pufa= Polyunsaturated fatty acid; Mufa= Monounsaturated fatty acid.

# 4.4.7. Amino acid analysis of Kadakhnath chicken

Dietary effect of turmeric and zinc supplement on amino acid profile of kadakhnath meat is showed below in figure 4.5. There is no significant difference among different dietary group of turmeric powder and zinc supplement. All essential amino acid is present in kadakhnath meat. Different dietary treatment does not change its amino acid profile significantly. Percentage of different amino acid may vary numerically in different diets but it do not vary significantly.





\*The data is presented as the average of three duplicate groups of five birds each. (n=3).\* T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc

# 4.4.8. Cost Benefit analysis of Kadakhnath chicken

Table 4.7 represents the cost benefit analysis of 10 weeks trails of Kadakhnath poultry. Dietary treatment of T2 group show the significance (p<0.05) highest in live weight (in Kg) gain and T4 group show the lowest feed intake per bird. T2 group show lowest cost per bird and highest profit in both term of income per bird and net profit per Kg live weight.

Parameter	Treatment						
	TO	<b>T1</b>	T2	Т3	<b>T4</b>	Р	
						value	
LWt/ b(Kg)	$1.0065^{c} \pm$	$1.06^{bc} \pm$	$1.105^{ab} \pm$	$0.99^{c} \pm$	$1.08^{a}\pm$	0.03	
	0.0015	0.03	0.015	0.03	0.03		
FI/b (Kg)	2.129 <sup>a</sup> ±0	$2.002^{b} \pm$	$1.7739^{d} \pm$	$1.97^{c} \pm$	$1.702^{e} \pm$	0.001	
		0.07	0	0.07	0.07		
Feed cost/kg	$37^{e}\pm$	$39^{d}\pm$	41 <sup>c</sup> ±	$42^{b}\pm$	44 <sup>a</sup>	0.000	
feed (TK)	0	1.0	0	1.0	±0.10	1	
Total feed	$78.773^{b} \pm$	$78.078^{\circ} \pm 1.$	$72.7299^{e} \pm$	$82.74^{a}\pm$	$74.888^{d} \pm$	0.000	
cost/b (TK)	0	4	0	1.4	1.39	1	
CVLcost/bird(	251±	251±	251±	251±	251±		
TK)	0	0	0	0	0		
total cost/ b	$329.773^{b} \pm$	$329.078^{\circ}\pm$	323.7299 <sup>e</sup>	$333.74^{a}\pm$	$325.888^{d} \pm 1$	0.000	
(TK)	0	1.4	$\pm 0$	1.4	.39	1	
Income/bird	349.18±	368.2±	382.08±	343.94±	363.06±	0.33	
(TK)	3.11	2.61	5.56	2.6	3.08		
Net profit/kg							
live	$19.41^{b} \pm$	39.12 <sup>b</sup> ±	$58.35^{a}\pm$	$10.19^{b} \pm$	32.07 <sup>b</sup>	0.044	
weight(TK)	3.11	2.61	5.56	2.57	$\pm 3.08$		

Table 4.7. Effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on cost benefit of kadakhnath meat

 $^{*a,b,c}$  in a row with no shared superscripts deviate significantly (p<0.05). The data is presented as the average of three duplicate groups of five birds each. (n=15).\*T0 =control group, T1 = 1% turmeric powder, T2= 1.5% turmeric powder and T3=1% turmeric powder+ 0.5% zinc and T4 =1.5% turmeric powder+0.5% zinc.LWt= Live weight; Kg= kilogram;FI= feed intake; b= bird;TK= taka; CVL= cost of vaccine and labor.

### **Chapter V: Discussion**

This chapter explains and contrasts the results of the current study with those of earlier research on the dietary effects of turmeric powder (an herbal growth promoter) and zinc supplements (a trace mineral) on growth performance, carcass characteristics, proximate composition, cooking loss, drip loss, meat ph, oxidative stability, amino acid profile, and fatty acid profile of kadakhnath (black meat) meat.

## 5.1. Growth performance

The findings of the current study showed that improved average daily gains were observed at the third and fourth weeks and that overall weight gains were also boosted in the birds at Kadakhnath when turmeric powder was added. Arslan et. al., 2017 supported the current study with the outcomes demonstrated that adding turmeric to a diet improved growth efficiency. Adding supplements at 1 and 1.5 percent boosted body weight increase. All levels increased the efficiency of feed conversion; however supplementation at a rate of 1.5% produced the best outcomes. Despite the lower consumption compared to other groups, this herb plant may have certain chemicals that improve nutrient digestion and absorption. That could also be because turmeric contains active ingredients (curcuminoids and curcumin), which increase feed consumption efficiency and promote growth. It has been noted that turmeric possesses antibacterial capabilities, and an ethanol turmeric extract showed a high ability to suppress several pathogenic microorganisms in hens (Miquel et al., 2002; Ong-ard et al., 2010). Thus, instead of using antibiotics, turmeric may be able to restrain the growth and colonization of a variety of pathogenic and nonpathogenic species of bacteria in the chicken's gut, creating balanced gut microbial ecosystems that enhance feed utilization as measured by a higher feed conversion ratio. The results of some previous studies (Durrani et al., 2006; Raghdad and Al-Jaleel, 2012; Osawa et al., 1995; Samarasinghe et al., 2003; Wuthi-Udomler et al., 2000) were in agreement with the findings of the effect of turmeric powder on body weight gain. They discovered that adding turmeric increased broiler body weight by a significant amount

(5g/kg). However, these results are at odds with Namagirilakshmi's (2005) claim that broiler fed turmeric at levels of 0.25, 0.50, 0.75, or 1 percent did not significantly alter body weight gain.

The increase in body growth gain in broiler chickens could be the result of a number of variables, such as the influence of turmeric on gastric digestion (William and Losa, 2001), increased villus length and width in the duodenum, jejunum, and caeca of hens (Rajput et al., 2013); increased bile production, which promotes the digestion of lipids (Al-Sultan and Gameel, 2004); Pancreatic lipase activity, amylase, trypsin, and chemotrypsin thresholds were accelerated (Chattopadhyay et al., 2004); digestive sucrose and maltase activities were stimulated (Platel and Srinivasan, 1996); a more stable intestinal flora was formed as a result to their antimicrobial effects (Erhan et al., 2012); the number of intestinal microbes was decreased; as well as selectively increased Lactobacillus count ((Sieo et al., 2005 and Namagirilakshmi et al., 2010). According to Faghani et al. (2014), the antibacterial effect of turmeric on intestinal microbial may be responsible for the reduction in microbial load in broiler chicks, which was primarily caused by increased feed intake and digestion. According to the current study, adding herbal phenolic acids, such as turmeric, which act as antimicrobials and induce mixing and gastrointestinal tract sterilizing, improved feed utilization and led to an increase in weight. These results were consistent with those of (Murray et al., 1991 and Hernandez et al., 2004) who suggested that the increase in body weight may have been caused by the presence of fatty acids or by the boosting impact of the broilers' digestive systems.

But according to the study, a diet that includes both zinc supplements and turmeric powder improves growth performance when compared to the control group. The FCR value and feed intake significantly decrease when zinc and turmeric powder are consumed together. A study of Kumar et al. (2021) agreed that When compared to the Zn-deficient diet (control), weight gain was increased with dietary supplements of Zinc supplement. In comparison to controls, broiler chicks given the zinc-supplemented food had a greater FCR (P < 0.05). Feed intake did not differ across the treatments. According to evidence in the literature, nano-Zn enhances feed efficiency, boosts growth performance, and lessens costs

of production in livestock and poultry (Swain et al., 2016; Kim et al., 2017) that also support the presentstudy. In summarize, broiler chickens' growth performance can be improved by supplementing their diets with Zn; Kumar et al. (2021). In the current investigation, dietary Zn treatments had no discernible impact on average daily weight gain (ADG), average daily feed intake (ADFI), or FCR during the rearing period, Eskandani et al. (2021) which is contradicted to our study.

According to this experiment, dietary supplements containing turmeric powder lower feed intake, improved FCR, and increased weight growth compared with control group. In addition to significantly reducing feed intake, the combined dietary effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplements also increase FCR, but not as much as a solitary turmeric diet. The study's growth performance summary indicates that turmeric powder at a concentration of 1.5 percent exhibits the best growth performance and FCR and lower feed intake.

## **5.2.** Carcass characteristics

The study showed that the liver weight of kadakhnath birds was affected by dietary supplements of zinc and turmeric powder, whereas other carcass parameters remained largely unchanged throughout treatment. Diet using turmeric powder lower liver weight but slightly increase liver weight when paired with a zinc and turmeric powder diet. Potential liver protection properties of turmeric and its constituents were known in Indian traditional medicine hundreds of years ago, according to Wei et al., 2019, Rivera-Espinoza et al. 2009, and Kim et al., 2013. Curcumin's effectiveness in improving liver function has also been shown in recent studies, which in some ways supports the findings of our study. Furthermore, the research we had suggested that taking supplements of curcumin might help treat liver conditions (Panahi et. al, 2017). According to Antiga et al. (2015), the pharmacologic effects of Curcuma longa L. appear to span a remarkably broad range, including anti-carcinogenic, anti-inflammatory, antioxidant, and immunomodulatory activity. The favorable effects of curcumin on liver function, however, have not been demonstrated in all trials (Navekar et al., 2017). The AST and ALP enzymes can both be

decreased by turmeric (Chukwu et al., 2015). In the study by Emadi and Kermanshahi (2007a), the level of 5 g/kg turmeric powder demonstrated the highest activity of lactate dehydrogenase (LDH) at 21 days of age and significantly decreased serum alkaline phosphatase (ALP) of the chickens, suggesting that turmeric may have some beneficial effects on liver enzymes that either directly or indirectly reflect a healthier liver status in broiler chickens.

Mehala and Moorthy (2008) also found no significant effects of turmeric powder (up to 10 g/kg of feed) on the carcass % of broiler chickens raised to six weeks of age, which is similar to our findings on carcass yield. On the other hand, broilers fed diets with 5 g/kg turmeric powder showed increased dressing percentage, breast, thigh, and giblet weight, according to Durrani et al. (2006). Other investigations found that adding turmeric to the diet had no appreciable impact on the weight of the carcass, heart, pancreas, intestine or gall bladder. (Nouzarian et. al.2011; Al-Sultan et. al. 2003)

Supplementation with zinc and turmeric had no discernible impact on carcass yield, with the exception of liver weight, which increased noticeably. IQudsieh et. al., 2018 statement of Dietary Zn had no impact on carcass weight and part yield, but it did raise the absolute weight of male, but not female, whole breast and tenders by 240 mg Zn/kg in comparison to 0 mg Zn/kg with 120 mg Zn/kg as an intermediary. Furthermore, according to Rossi et al.2007, feeding broilers increased amounts of dietary organic Zn had no effect on carcass yields. The prior study by Collins and Moran, which found that broiler fed inorganic Zn at levels above those recommended by the NRC had no effect on carcass weight, provided support for the current findings. Supplemental zinc may enhance Pekin duck breast muscle antioxidant enzyme activity and mRNA levels while also enhancing meat quality and carcass characteristics (Wen, 2019).

## **5.3.** Meat quality

Current study showed a improved oxidative stability after dietary treatment of turmeric powder with or without Zinc .The results of the Wan et. al.(2015) also showed that dietary turmeric supplementation might boost broilers' ability to fight free radicals by raising their SOD and GSH-Px activities and lowering their serum MDA levels. These findings are in line with other reports of conventional broilers (Daneshyar, 2012; Daneshyar et al., 2012).In our study 1.5% turmeric powder show most significant result in case of kadakhnath meat oxidative stability. Whereas combined diet of turmeric powder and zinc supplement show low TBARS value from first day of experiment. Previous research showed that the antioxidant activity increased with the amount of added turmeric( Bojorges et. al, 2020). Similar to our findings, Kanani et al. (2016) shown that supplementing with turmeric lowered oxidative stress in broilers by lowering levels of plasma and serum MDA and TBARS. The primary component of turmeric is curcumin, which improves the body's natural defenses against free radicals and has positive impacts on a variety of biological processes (Chattopadhyay et al., 2004). Supplemental Zn markedly improved the pH and redness values in thigh muscle, reduced shear force in thigh muscle, and reduced drip loss in thigh and breast muscle (Liu et. al., 2011). This statement somewhat support our experimental result. Zn treatments considerably reduced the shear force and TBARS value less than that of the control group (Eskandani et. al., 2019).

Similar to our work, Hussain (2013) found that broilers treated with turmeric powder cause decrease in ether extract. In our study single diet of turmeric powder decrease ether extract but combined diet with turmeric powder and zinc increase ether extract. Al-Sultan (2003) also looked fat percentage decreased in bird meat treated with 1.0% turmeric which also supports our study. But In crude protein percentage there is no significant difference among the treatment groups. Dry matter of kadakhnath meat after using turmeric powder with or without zinc supplement increase than control group.

Current study show that Kadakhnath meat ph range is 5.009 to 5.72. Combination of 0.05 % zinc and 1.5 % turmeric powder show lower pH 5.009 at kadakhnath meat. The findings of Sundari et al., 2015 show that the meat's pH value is good; meat with a low pH (5.1-6.2) will be bright red, have a pleasant flavor, resist rot, and have an open structure. This study's findings outperformed those of the study that claimed the average pH varies from 5.96 to 6.58 (Wala , 2013). Broiler meat has an ideal pH range of 5.4 - 5.8 (Masni et. al.2013). According to Daneshyar et al. (2011), dietary supplementation with powdered turmeric rhizome had no discernible impact on the pH of thigh muscle, which is not identical to our results. Combined diet with zinc and 1.5 % turmeric powder. The control group's breast meat pH (24 hours after slaughter) was substantially higher than those of the other Zn treatment groups (P 0.05) (Eskandani et. al., 2019).

Meat's ability to hold water is measured using a characteristic called drip loss. Muscles with a low capacity to store water may leak more fluid, which could result in the loss of flavor and soluble nutrients (Otto et al., 2004). According to the findings of the current investigation, dietary turmeric supplementation with or without zinc has no significant on the drip loss of kadakhnath meat. The quantity of cooking losses is indicated by the weakening of protein linkages, which makes it difficult to bind meat liquids and increases the amount of meat juices that are released due to a diminished ability to hold water (Dewi et al., 2003). According to Meng et al. (2020), adding antioxidant supplements turmeric to the diet decreased the shear force levels of pork as the cellular antioxidant capability improved and enhanced meat quality. In our study combined diet of turmeric powder and zinc show lowest TBARS value with great oxidative stability. Drip loss is a criterion used to assess the sample's water-holding capacity. Consumers are hesitant to accept meat that has a high drip loss and cooking percentage. Different Zn treatments had no effect on drip loss (P>0.05) (Eskandani et. al. 2019) that support our study. In the current investigation, dietary turmeric with or without zinc markedly reduced the amount of Kadakhnath meat lost after cooking. In broiler chicken breast muscle, cooking and drip losses were shown to be reduced by dietary curcumin, according to Zhang et al., (2015). The ability of Kadakhnath breast muscle to absorb antioxidants increased along with reductions in cooking losses. Similar research shown that adding curcumin to the meal dramatically

reduced drip loss and improved the redness of the pigs' meat. Zinc and turmeric powder work together to improve the broiler's weight, performance, carcass features, digestive enzymes, meat quality traits, blood indices, cecal microbial load, and antioxidant capacity. To improve performance and health while also giving financial benefits, it is proposed that broiler feeding regimens include Zn, turmeric, and their combinations (El-Hack et. al., 2021).

## 5.4. Fatty acid and amino acid

The level of fatty acids in kadakhnath meat is well recognized. The level of fatty acids in kadakhnath meat is unaffected greatly by the addition of turmeric powder to the diet, with or without zinc. Similar to our finding, Daneshyar et al. (2011) did a study and found that high doses of turmeric (0.75%) added to broiler feeds significantly reduced plasma triglyceride levels and total SFA levels. The total MUFA rate was significantly reduced (P< 0.05) by the addition of 6 g/kg of turmeric to the diet. it was found that the addition of turmeric had no appreciable impact on the overall PUFA rate( Ürüşan et. al., 2020) and zinc in bird diet have no effect on fatty acid composition of birds meat (Cerovi, 2005);this statement support our study.

Adding of singly turmeric powder increase saturated fatty acid but combination diet of turmeric powder and zinc decrease the saturated fatty acid of kadakhnath meat. On the other hand unsaturated fatty acid decrease4d by single diet of turmeric powder whereas combined diet of turmeric and zinc increase unsaturated fatty acid.

Kadakhnath meat amino acid profile does not affected by dietary treatment of different percentage of turmeric powder with or without zinc supplement. All the essential amino acid found in black meat. The concentration of turmeric extracts in germinated korean brown rice led to an increase in the amount of essential, non-essential, and total amino acids, including GABA (Dhungana et. al., 2021) which do not supported our study.

# **Chapter VI: Conclusion**

In this experiment, the dietary effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplementation were examined for their effects on growth performance, carcass characteristics, proximate composition, cooking loss, drip loss, meat pH, oxidative stability, fatty acid profile, and cost-benefit analysis of Kadakhnath (black meat) meat.

Birds fed T2 diet containing 1.5% turmeric powder exhibits the superior feed consumption, highest weight gain and lowest FCR. In a diet that included both zinc supplements and turmeric powder, the weight of the liver increased while it reduced when only turmeric powder was used in diet. Other aspects of the carcass did not alter much compared with control birds. Compared to the control group, the treatment group's proportion of dry matter and ether extract (EE %) increased.

The drip loss % did not differ from the control group. The dietary treatment group saw a reduction in cooking loss, with the T1 group having the lowest cooking loss when using turmeric powder at 1%. Oxidative stability of black meat is great. The value of meat TBARS significantly decreased gradually 3, 5 and 7 days of storage at 4°c.T4 diet groups with 1.5% turmeric and 0.5 % zinc supplement show highest reduction on TBARS value. Black meat's amino acid composition was unaffected by different dietary supplements. When zinc was combined with turmeric powder, saturated fatty acids were reduced and unsaturated fatty acids were raised.

With regard to dietary supplements, it can be concluded that the T2 groups with 1.5% turmeric powder supplements are most beneficial. These dietary groups fulfill all 4 objectives of experiment with most cost effective diet group. Thus, supplementation of 1.5% turmeric powder could be used to improve growth, meat quality and shelf life of kadakhnath chicken (black meat) meat.

## **Chapter VII: Recommendation**

Other herbal growth promoter like ginger, peppermint, curry powder, zinger e.t.c can be used in different forms to see the growth performance, meat quality and other meat composition. Study can perform to determine effects of turmeric powder and zinc supplement on intestinal microbial population and intestine morphology. Cholesterol level of both blood and meat should be examined. Nutrient digestibility of black meat can be examined. In this study we used turmeric powder; other form of turmeric like leaves, fresh turmeric, prebiotic from turmeric can also be used in diet to find out most stable growth promoter for commercial farming. Black meat shelf life should test.

Other micro minerals like ca, mg e.t.c. can also be used in diet of kadakhnath birds to see the effect on growth performance and meat quality. A series of marketing trails can be performed to commercialize the black meat.

# **Chapter VIII: Limitation and future perspectives**

These limitations of the current study allow for future experimentation by researchers.

Limited funding sources, lab space, and time appear to be obstacles that can be reduced and addressed in great detail. Only 70 kadakhnath birds received feeding trails. Although the Kadakhnath is a scavenger bird, it was raised in a cage for better research. This fact might slightly slow growth. This route has to be run in more population centers and in climates with a variety of conditions to evaluate its true effectiveness. Both male and female birds can be raised separately to see grow performance.

Liver weight rose following therapy with zinc and turmeric. To determine the true immunological response of kadakhnaths following turmeric feeding, we did not conduct any biological tests. Meat from the Kadakhnath birds should be tested for cholesterol level. In the future, various immunological testing can be carried out to fully comprehend the mechanism. Turmeric has a favorable impact on some types of meat quality; its impact on other types of meat quality should be investigated. Checking nutritional digestibility is important.

Following zinc supplementation, the total nitrogen lost through feces may be measured; blood parameters should be examined. To determine the most stable growth promoter, many kinds of trace minerals and herbal growth promoters can be utilized in the diet. To create a more accurate biochemical profile of kadakhnath meat, more amino acid and fatty acid sample tests should be conducted.

The color of the flesh is a significant marketing barrier for kadakhnath or black meat. There should be some research done on marketing strategies for black meat. Kadakhnath farming is profitable, according to studies, but a commercial batch can be examined for more accurate analysis.

## **Chapter IX: References**

- Abd Al-Jaleel, R.A. 2012. Use of turmeric (Curcuma longa) on the performance and some physiological traits on the broiler diets. The Iraqi Journal of Veterinary Medicine, 36(1), pp.51-57.
- Abd El-Hack, M.E., Alagawany, M., Arif, M., Chaudhry, M.T., Emam, M. and Patra, A. 2017. Organic or inorganic zinc in poultry nutrition: a review. World's Poultry Science Journal, 73(4), pp.904-915.
- Abd El-Hack, M.E., Alaidaroos, B.A., Farsi, R.M., Abou-Kassem, D.E., El-Saadony, M.T., Saad, A.M., Shafi, M.E., Albaqami, N.M., Taha, A.E. and Ashour, E.A. 2021. Impacts of supplementing broiler diets with biological curcumin, zinc nanoparticles and Bacillus licheniformis on growth, carcass traits, blood indices, meat quality and cecal microbial load. Animals, 11(7), p.1878.
- Abubakar, A., Fitri, C.A., Koesmara, H. and Ardatami, S. 2021, February. Analysis of pH and cooking losses of chicken meat due to the use of different percentages of turmeric flour. In IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science (Vol. 667, No. 1, p. 012042). IOP Publishing.
- Adams, L.K., Lyon, D.Y. and Alvarez, P.J. 2006. Comparative eco-toxicity of nanoscale TiO2, SiO2, and ZnO water suspensions. Water research, 40(19), pp.3527-3532.
- Aggarwal, B.B. and Harikumar, K.B. 2009. Potential therapeutic effects of curcumin, the anti-inflammatory agent, against neurodegenerative, cardiovascular, pulmonary, metabolic, autoimmune and neoplastic diseases. The international journal of biochemistry & cell biology, 41(1), pp.40-59.
- Ahmad, R.S., Hussain, M.B., Sultan, M.T., Arshad, M.S. Waheed, M., Shariati, M.A., Plygun, S. and Hashempur, M.H., 2020. Biochemistry, safety, pharmacological activities, and clinical applications of turmeric: a mechanistic review. Evidencebased complementary and alternative medicine, 2020.
- Ahmed, I., Rabbi, M.B. and Sultana, S. 2019. Antibiotic resistance in Bangladesh: A systematic review. International Journal of Infectious Diseases, 80, pp.54-61.
- Aiman Usman, 2021; Turmeric: The Natural Antibiotic; Marham

- Akarchariya, N., Sirilun, S., Julsrigival, J. and Chansakaowa, S. 2017. Chemical profiling and antimicrobial activity of essential oil from Curcuma aeruginosa Roxb.,
  Curcuma glans K. Larsen & J. Mood and Curcuma cf. xanthorrhiza Roxb.
  collected in Thailand. Asian Pacific Journal of Tropical Biomedicine, 7(10),
  pp.881-885.
- Akhavan-Salamat, H. and Ghasemi, H.A. 2019. Effect of different sources and contents of zinc on growth performance, carcass characteristics, humoral immunity and antioxidant status of broiler chickens exposed to high environmental temperatures. Livestock science, 223, pp.76-83.
- Al Mamun, M., Islam, M. and Rahman, M.M. 2019. Occurrence of poultry diseases at Kishoregonj district of Bangladesh. MedCrave Online Journal of Proteomics & Bioinformatics, 8, pp.7-12.
- AL-Kassie, G.A., Mohseen, A.M. and Abd-AL-Jaleel, R.A. 2011. Modification of productive performance and physiological aspects of broilers on the addition of a mixture of cumin and turmeric to the diet. Research Opinions in Animal & Veterinary Sciences.
- Al-Sultan, S.I. and Gameel, A.A. 2004. Histopathological changes in the livers of broiler chicken supplemented with turmeric (Curcuma longa). International Journal of Poultry Science, 3(5), pp.333-336.
- Al-Sultan, S.I. 2003. The effect of Curcuma longa (turmeric) on overall performance of broiler chickens. International Journal of Poultry Science, 2(5), pp.351-353.
- Analytical Methods for Amino acid, Shimardu technologies notebook.2020.
- Antiga, E., Bonciolini, V., Volpi, W., Del Bianco, E. and Caproni, M. 2015. Oral curcumin (Meriva) is effective as an adjuvant treatment and is able to reduce IL-22 serum levels in patients with psoriasis vulgaris. BioMed research international, 2015.
- Ao, T., Pierce, J.L., Power, R., Dawson, K.A., Pescatore, A.J., Cantor, A.H. and Ford,
   M.J. 2006. Evaluation of Bioplex Zn® as an organic zinc source for chicks. International Journal of Poultry Science, 5(9), pp.808-811.
- Ao, T., Pierce, J.L., Power, R., Pescatore, A.J., Cantor, A.H., Dawson, K.A. and Ford,M.J. 2009. Effects of feeding different forms of zinc and copper on the

performance and tissue mineral content of chicks. Poultry Science, 88(10), pp.2171-2175.

- Arslan, M., Haq, A., Ashraf, M., Iqbal, J. and Mund, M.D. 2017. Effect of turmeric (Curcuma longa) supplementation on growth performance, immune response, carcass characteristics and cholesterol profile in broilers. Veterinaria, 66(1), pp.16-20.
- Atolani, O., Adeniyi, O., Kayode, O.O. and Adeosun, C.B. 2015. Direct preparation of fatty acid methyl esters and determination of in vitro antioxidant potential of lipid from fresh Sebal causarium Seed. Journal of Applied Pharmaceutical Science, 5(3), pp.024-028.
- Barbieri, J.S., Nguyen, H.P., Forman, H.P., Bolognia, J.L. and Collins, S.A. 2018. Future considerations for clinical dermatology in the setting of 21st century American policy reform: The Relative Value Scale Update Committee. Journal of the American Academy of Dermatology, 78(4), pp.816-820.
- Batal, A.B., Parr, T.M. and Baker, D.H. 2001. Zinc bioavailability in tetrabasic zinc chloride and the dietary zinc requirement of young chicks fed a soy concentrate diet. Poultry Science, 80(1), pp.87-90.
- Bojorges, H., Ríos-Corripio, M.A., Hernández-Cázares, A.S., Hidalgo-Contreras, J.V. and Contreras-Oliva, A. 2020. Effect of the application of an edible film with turmeric (Curcuma longa L.) on the oxidative stability of meat. Food Science & Nutrition, 8(8), pp.4308-4319.
- Bolognia, J.L., Schaffer, J.V. and Cerroni, L. eds. 2018. Dermatología. Elsevier Health Sciences.
- Burrell, A.L., Dozier, W.A., Davis, A.J., Compton, M.M., Freeman, M.E., Vendrell, P.F. and Ward, T.L. 2004. Responses of broilers to dietary zinc concentrations and sources in relation to environmental implications. British Poultry Science, 45(2), pp.225-263.
- Cerović, A., Miletić, I., Blagojević, D., Šobajić, S., Čolić, M., Vasiljevska, M. and Poznanić, M. 2005. The effect of zinc diet on distribution of fatty acid in blood plasma chylomicrons. Jugoslovenska medicinska biohemija, 24(1), pp.15-20.

- Chattopadhyay, I., Biswas, K., Bandyopadhyay, U. and Banerjee, R.K. 2004. Turmeric and curcumin: Biological actions and medicinal applications. Current science, pp.44-53.
- Chowdhury, H., Banerjee, T. and Walia, S. 2008. In vitro screening of Curcuma longa L and its derivatives sa antifungal agents against Helminthosporrum oryzae and Fusarium solani. Pesticide Research Journal, 20(1), pp.6-9.
- Collins, N.E. and Moran Jr, E.T. 1999. Influence of supplemental manganese and zinc on live performance and carcass quality of broilers. Journal of applied poultry research, 8(2), pp.222-227.
- Dairaku, I., Han, Y., Yanaka, N. and Kato, N. 2010. Inhibitory effect of curcumin on IMP dehydrogenase, the target for anticancer and antiviral chemotherapy agents. Bioscience, biotechnology, and biochemistry, pp.0912011751-0912011751.
- Dalal, R. and Kosti, D. 2018. Turmeric powder as feed additive in laying hen Areview. Journal of Pharmacognosy and Phytochemistry, 7(3), pp.2686-2689.
- Daneshyar, M. 2012. The effect of dietary turmeric on antioxidant properties of thigh meat in broiler chickens after slaughter. Animal Science Journal, 83(8), pp.599-604.
- Daneshyar, M. Ghandkanlo, M.A., Bayeghra, F.S., Farhangpajhoh, F. and Aghaei, M., 2011. Effects of dietary turmeric supplementation on plasma lipoproteins, meat quality and fatty acid composition in broilers. South African Journal of Animal Science, 41(4), pp.420-428.
- Daneshyar, M., Kermanshahi, H. and Golian, A. 2012. The effects of turmeric supplementation on antioxidant status, blood gas indices and mortality in broiler chickens with T3-induced ascites. British Poultry Science, 53(3), pp.379-385.
- Darwis, S. N., A. B. D. M. Indo dan S. Hasiyah. 1991. Tumbuhan obat famili Zingiberaceae. Badan Penelitian dan Pengembangan Pertanian, Bogorde Beer M, McMurtry JP, Brocht DM and Coon CN. An examination of the role of feeding regimens in regulating metabolism during the broiler breeder grower period. 2. Plasma hormones and metabolites. Poultry Science, 87: 264-275. 2008.

- Debjit Bhowmik, C., Kumar, K.S., Chandira, M. and Jayakar, B. 2009. Turmeric: a herbal and traditional medicine. Archives of applied science research, 1(2), pp.86-108.
- Dharmananda, S. 2003. Gallnut and the uses of tannins in Chinese medicine. In: Proceedings of institute for traditional medicine, Portland, Oregon.
- Dono N.D. 2013. Turmeric (Curcuma longa Linn.) supplementation as analternative to antibiotics in poultry diets. Indonesian Bulletin of Animal and Veterinary Sciences, 23(1): 41-49
- Dr. Rajesh Singh. 2019. Health benefits of kadakhnath chicken.
- Duncan DB.1955.multiplerangeand multiple F test.11:1
- Duraisankar, M. and Ravindran, A.D. 2015. Identification of Curcuma longa rhizomes by physicochemical and TLC fingerprint analysis. Int. J. PharmTech. Res, 8, pp.198-205.
- Durrani, F.R., Ismail, M., Sultan, A., Suhail, S.M., Chand, N. and Durrani, Z. 2006. Effect of different levels of feed added turmeric (Curcuma longa) on the performance of broiler chicks. Journal of Agricultural and Biological Science, 1(2), pp.9-11.
- E. De Clercq. 2002. Strategies in the design of antiviral drugs, Nature Reviews Drug Discovery, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 13–25.
- Ebuehi, O.A. and Akande, G.A. 2009. Effect of zinc deficiency on memory, oxidative stress and blood chemistry in rats. International Journal of Biological and Chemical Sciences, 3(3).
- Edwards III, H.M. and Baker, D.H. 2000. Zinc bioavailability in soybean meal. Journal of animal science, 78(4), pp.1017-1021.
- Emadi M and Kermanshahi H. 2007. Effect of turmeric rhizome powder on the activity of some blood enzymes in broiler chickens. International Journal of Poultry Science, 6: 48-51.
- Emmert, J.L. and Baker, D.H. 1995. Zinc stores in chickens delay the onset of zinc deficiency symptoms. Poultry science, 74(6), pp.1011-1021.
- Erhan, M.K., Bölükbaşı, Ş.C. and Ürüşan, H. 2012. Biological activities of pennyroyal (Mentha pulegium L.) in broilers. Livestock Science, 146(2-3), pp.189-192.

- Eskandani, M., Janmohammadi, H., Mirghelenj, S.A., Ebrahimi, M. and Kalanaky, S. 2021. Effects of zinc nanoparticles on growth performance, carcass characteristics, immunity, and meat quality of broiler chickens. Iranian Journal of Applied Animal Science, 11(1), pp.135-146.
- Faghani, M.; Rafiee, A.; Namjoo, A.R. and Rahimian, Y. 2014. Performance, cholesterol profile and intestinal microbial population in broilers fed turmeric extract. Research Opinion of Animal and Veterinary Science, 4(9): 500-503.
- Faiz, M.A. and Basher, A. 2011. Antimicrobial resistance: Bangladesh experience. In Regional Health Forum (Vol. 15, No. 1, pp. 1-8).
- Fakler, T.M. and Johnson, A.B. 1998. Copper complexes improve nursery pig performance.
- Fasina, Y.O., Classen, H.L., Garlich, J.D., Black, B.L., Ferket, P.R., Uni, Z. and Olkowski, A.A. 2006. Response of turkey poults to soybean lectin levels typically encountered in commercial diets. 2. Effect on intestinal development and lymphoid organs. Poultry science, 85(5), pp.870-877.
- Fawaz, M.A., Südekum, K.H., Hassan, H.A. and Abdel-Wareth, A.A. 2022. Productive, physiological and nutritional responses of laying hens fed different dietary levels of turmeric powder. Journal of Animal Physiology and Animal Nutrition.
- Firdaus, A. 2018. Pengaruh konsentrasi dan lama perendaman air perasan lengkuas (Alpinia galanga) terhadap total bakteri Staphylococcus aureus, Escherichia coli, Salmonella sp., dan kadar protein pada daging ayam (Doctoral dissertation, Universitas Islam Negeri Maulana Malik Ibrahim).
- Fortner, J.D., Lyon, D.Y., Sayes, C.M., Boyd, A.M., Falkner, J.C., Hotze, E.M., Alemany, L.B., Tao, Y.J., Guo, W., Ausman, K.D. and Colvin, V.L. 2005. C60 in water: nanocrystal formation and microbial response. Environmental Science & Technology, 39(11), pp.4307-4316.
- Gandhi, P., Khan, Z. and Chakraverty, N. 2011. Soluble curcumin: a promising oral supplement for health management. Journal of applied pharmaceutical science, (Issue), pp.01-07.

- Ghule, K., Ghule, A.V., Chen, B.J. and Ling, Y.C. 2006. Preparation and characterization of ZnO nanoparticles coated paper and its antibacterial activity study. Green Chemistry, 8(12), pp.1034-1041.
- Gills, L. S. 1992. Ethno medical uses of plants in Nigeria. Pp. 276. African press, Benin City.
- Gouda, M.M. and Bhandary, Y.P. 1998. Natural antibiotic effect of turmeric in poultry management. In Annual Symposium, Nottingham (UK): Nottingham University Press (Vol. 273, p. 291).
- Gupta, S.C., Patchva, S. and Aggarwal, B.B. 2013. Therapeutic roles of curcumin: lessons learned from clinical trials. The AAPS journal, 15(1), pp.195-218.
- Hafez, H.M. and Attia, Y.A. 2020. Challenges to the poultry industry: current perspectives and strategic future after the COVID-19 outbreak. Frontiers in veterinary science, 7, p.516.
- Hamid, M.A., Rahman, M.A., Ahmed, S. and Hossain, K.M. 2017. Status of poultry industry in Bangladesh and the role of private sector for its development. Asian Journal of Poultry Science, 11(1), pp.1-13.
- Haunshi, S. and Prince, L.L.L. 2021. Kadaknath: a popular native chicken breed of India with unique black colour characteristics. World's Poultry Science Journal, 77(2), pp.427-440.
- Haunshi, S., Sunitha, R., Shanmugam, M., Padhi, M.K. and Niranjan, M. 2013. Carcass characteristics and chemical composition of breast and thigh. Indian Journal of Poultry Science, 48(2), pp.219-222.
- Hays VW, Swenson MJ. Minerals and Bones. In: Dukes HH (ed).1985: Physiology of Domestic Animals. 10th Edition449-466
- Henry, P.R., Ammerman, C.B. and Miles, R.D. 1987. Effect of dietary zinc on tissue mineral concentration as a measure of zinc bioavailability in chicks. Nutrition reports international, 35(1), pp.15-23.
- Hernandez, F., Madrid, J., Garcia, V., Orengo, J. and Megias, M.D. 2004. Influence of two plant extracts on broilers performance, digestibility, and digestive organ size. Poultry science, 83(2), pp.169-174.
- Hess, J.B., Bilgili, S.F., Parson, A.M. and Downs, K.M. 2001. Influence of complexed zinc products on live performance and carcass grade of broilers. Journal of Applied Animal Research, 19(1), pp.49-60.
- Hewlings, S.J. and Kalman, D.S. 2017. Curcumin: A review of its effects on human health. Foods, 6(10), p.92.
- Honikel, K.O. 1998. Reference methods for the assessment of physical characteristics of meat. Meat science, 49(4), pp.447-457.
- Horwitz, W. and Latimer Jr, G. 2005. Methods of Analysis of AOAC International.
- Huang, Y.L., Lu, L., Luo, X.G. and Liu, B. 2007. An optimal dietary zinc level of broiler chicks fed a corn-soybean meal diet. Poultry Science, 86(12), pp.2582-2589.
- Hudson, B.P., Dozier III, W.A., Fairchild, B.D., Wilson, J.L., Sander, J.E. and Ward, T.L. 2004. Live performance and immune responses of straight-run broilers: influences of zinc source in broiler breeder hen and progeny diets and ambient temperature during the broiler production period. Journal of applied poultry research, 13(2), pp.291-301.
- Hunt, M.C., King, A., Barbut, S., Clause, J., Cornforth, D., Hanson, D., Lindahl, G., Mancini, R., Milkowski, A., Mohan, A. and Pohlman, F. 2012. AMSA meat color measurement guidelines. American Meat Science Association, Champaign, Illinois USA, 61820, pp.1-135.
- Hurley, L.S. 1981. Teratogenic aspects of manganese, zinc, and copper nutrition. Physiological Reviews, 61(2), pp.249-295.
- Hussein S.N. 2013. The effect of dietary levels Turmeric (Curcuma longa) powder supplementation on growth performance and some blood parameters of broiler chicks. Journal of Advanced Biomedical & Pathobiology Research; 3(2):25-32.
- Ikpeama, A., Onwuka, G.I. and Nwankwo, C. 2014. Nutritional composition of Tumeric (Curcuma longa) and its antimicrobial properties. International Journal of Scientific and Engineering Research, 5(10), pp.1085-1089.
- Jadhao, A.S. and Bhuktar, A.S. 2018. Genus Curcuma L.(Zingiberaceae) from Maharashtra State–India International Journal of Current Research in Biosciences and Plant Biology. 5, pp.39-48.

- Jassim, S.A. and Naji, M.A. 2003. Novel antiviral agents: a medicinal plant perspective. Journal of applied microbiology, 95(3), pp.412-427.
- Jesline, A., John, N.P., Narayanan, P.M., Vani, C. and Murugan, S. 2015. Antimicrobial activity of zinc and titanium dioxide nanoparticles against biofilm-producing methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus. Applied Nanoscience, 5(2), pp.157-162.

Kadaknath Chicken Farming, Health Benefits to disadvantages, Agrikit.2022.

- Kadaknath Chicken the Only Black meat Chicken Breed of India; KB livestock farm.2013.
- Kanakachari, M., Rahman, H., Chatterjee, R.N. and Bhattacharya, T.K. 2022. Signature of Indian native chicken breeds: a perspective. World's Poultry Science Journal, 78(2), pp.421-445.
- Kanani, P.B., Daneshyar, M. and Najafi, R. 2016. Effects of cinnamon (Cinnamomum zeylanicum) and turmeric (Curcuma longa) powders on performance, enzyme activity, and blood parameters of broiler chickens under heat stress. Poultry Science Journal, 4(1), pp.47-53. performance, enzyme activity, and blood parameters of broiler chickens under heat stress. *Poult. Sci. J.* 4(1), 47-53
- Kanani, P.B., Daneshyar, M., Aliakbarlu, J. and Hamian, F. 2017. Effect of dietary turmeric and cinnamon powders on meat quality and lipid peroxidation of broiler chicken under heat stress condition. In Veterinary Research Forum (Vol. 8, No. 2, p. 163).
- Kermanshahi, H. and Riasi, A. 2006. Effect of turmeric rhizome powder (Curcuma longa) and soluble NSP degrading enzyme on some blood parameters of laying hens. Int. J. Poult. Sci, 5(5), pp.494-498.
- Khajeh Bami, M., Afsharmanesh, M. and Ebrahimnejad, H. 2020. Effect of dietary Bacillus coagulans and different forms of zinc on performance, intestinal microbiota, carcass and meat quality of broiler chickens. Probiotics and antimicrobial proteins, 12(2), pp.461-472.
- Khatun, J., Loh, T.C., Akit, H., Foo, H.L. and Mohamad, R. 2018. Influence of different sources of oil on performance, meat quality, gut morphology, ileal digestibility

and serum lipid profile in broilers. Journal of Applied Animal Research, 46(1), pp.479-485.

- Khajeh Bami, M., Afsharmanesh, M. and Ebrahimnejad, H. 2020. Effect of dietary Bacillus coagulans and different forms of zinc on performance, intestinal microbiota, carcass and meat quality of broiler chickens. Probiotics and antimicrobial proteins, 12(2), pp.461-472.
- Kilic, S., Oz, E. and Oz, F. 2021. Effect of turmeric on the reduction of heterocyclic aromatic amines and quality of chicken meatballs. Food Control, 128, p.108189.
- Kim, J.H., Yoon, Y.H., Kim, I.D., Dhungana, S.K., Park, Y.S. and Shin, D.H. 2021. Effect of Turmeric Extracts on Nutritional and Antioxidant Properties of Germinated Korean Brown Rice. Korean Journal of Plant Resources, 34(6), pp.517-526.
- Kim, S.W., Ha, K.C., Choi, E.K., Jung, S.Y., Kim, M.G., Kwon, D.Y., Yang, H.J., Kim, M.J., Kang, H.J., Back, H.I. and Kim, S.Y. 2013. The effectiveness of fermented turmeric powder in subjects with elevated alanine transaminase levels: a randomised controlled study. BMC complementary and alternative medicine, 13(1), pp.1-8.
- Kosti, D., Dahiya, D.S., Dalal, R., Tewatia, B.S. and Vijayalakshmy, K.2020. Role of turmeric supplementation on production, physical and biochemical parameters in laying hens. World's Poultry Science Journal, 76(3), pp.625-637.
- Magdalena Krauze. 2021. Phytobiotics, a Natural Growth Promoter for Poultry. Advanced Studies in the 21st Century Animal Nutrition.
- Kumar, A., Hosseindoust, A., Kim, M., Kim, K., Choi, Y., Lee, S., Lee, S., Lee, J., Cho, H., Kang, W.S. and Chae, B. 2021. Nano-sized zinc in broiler chickens: effects on growth performance, zinc concentration in organs, and intestinal morphology. The journal of poultry science, 58(1), pp.21-29.
- Kumar, M., Ratwan, P., Dahiya, S.P. and Nehra, A.K. 2021. Climate change and heat stress: Impact on production, reproduction and growth performance of poultry and its mitigation using genetic strategies. Journal of thermal biology, 97, p.102867.

- Kumar, P., Verma, A.K., Umaraw, P., Mehta, N. and Sazili, A.Q. 2022. Processing and preparation of slaughtered poultry. In Postharvest and Postmortem Processing of Raw Food Materials (pp. 281-314). Woodhead Publishing.
- Kumari P, Gupta MK, Ranjan R, Singh KK, Yadava R. 2007. Curcuma longa as feed additive in broiler birds and its patho-physiological effects. Indian Jounal of Experimental Biology 45:272-277.
- Lagua, E. and Ampode, K.M. 2021. Turmeric powder: potential alternative to antibiotics in broiler chicken diets. Lagua E, Ampode KM (2021). Turmeric powder: potential alternative to antibiotics in broiler chicken diets. Journal of Animal Health Prod, 9(3), pp.243-253.
- Lakshmi, S., Padmaja, G. and Remani, P. 2011. Antitumour effects of isocurcumenol isolated from Curcuma zedoaria rhizomes on human and murine cancer cells. International Journal of Medicinal Chemistry, 2011.
- Landers, T.F., Cohen, B., Wittum, T.E. and Larson, E.L. 2012. A review of antibiotic use in food animals: perspective, policy, and potential. Public health reports, 127(1), pp.4-22.
- Larive International B.V. and LightCastle Partners Ltd; 2020. Embassy of the Kingdom of the Netherlands in Bangladesh. Poultry sector study Bangladesh.
- Lawhavinit, O.A., Kongkathip, N. and Kongkathip, B. 2010. Antimicrobial activity of curcuminoids from Curcuma longa L. on pathogenic bacteria of shrimp and chicken. Agriculture and Natural Resources, 44(3), pp.364-371.
- Lemoine, M., Nayagam, S. and Thursz, M. 2013. Viral hepatitis in resource-limited countries and access to antiviral therapies: current and future challenges. Future virology, 8(4), pp.371-380.
- Lenhardt, Ľ. and Mozeš, Š. 2003. Morphological and functional changes of the small intestine in growth-stunted broilers. Acta Veterinaria Brno, 72(3), pp.353-358.
- Leung, A.Y. and Foster, S. 1996. Encyclopedia of common natural ingredients used in food, drugs, and cosmetics (No. Ed. 2). John Wiley & Sons, Inc..
- Li, B.T., Van Kessel, A.G., Caine, W.R., Huang, S.X. and Kirkwood, R.N. 2001. Small intestinal morphology and bacterial populations in ileal digesta and feces of newly

weaned pigs receiving a high dietary level of zinc oxide. Canadian Journal of Animal Science, 81(4), pp.511-516.

- Li, P., Li, J., Wu, C., Wu, Q. and Li, J. 2005. Synergistic antibacterial effects of β-lactam antibiotic combined with silver nanoparticles. Nanotechnology, 16(9), p.1912.
- Li, S., Yuan, W., Deng, G., Wang, P., Yang, P. and Aggarwal, B. 2011. Chemical composition and product quality control of turmeric (Curcuma longa L.).
- Liju, V.B., Jeena, K. and Kuttan, R., 2011. An evaluation of antioxidant, antiinflammatory, and antinociceptive activities of essential oil from Curcuma longa.L. Indian journal of pharmacology, 43(5), p.526.
- Lisa Steele, 2015. Is Turmeric Good for Chickens?-Hobby Farms cite.
- Liu, Z.H., Lu, L., Li, S.F., Zhang, L.Y., Xi, L., Zhang, K.Y. and Luo, X.G. 2011. Effects of supplemental zinc source and level on growth performance, carcass traits, and meat quality of broilers. Poultry science, 90(8), pp.1782-1790.
- Lobo, R., Prabhu, K.S., Shirwaikar, A. and Shirwaikar, A. 2009. Curcuma zedoaria Rosc.(white turmeric): a review of its chemical, pharmacological and ethnomedicinal properties. Journal of Pharmacy and Pharmacology, 61(1), pp.13-21.
- Luo, P.G., Tzeng, T.R., Shah, R.R. and Stutzenberger, F.J. 2007. Nanomaterials for antimicrobial applications and pathogen detection. Current Trends Microbiology, 3, pp.111-128.
- Masni, Ismanto A, Begis M, Puspitasari I, Nuhriwangsa A M P dan Swastika W. 2013. Rations on Nutrient Digestibility of Broiler Chickens J Teknologi Pertanian, 6 7-14.
- Matei, A., Cernica, I., Cadar, O., Roman, C. and Schiopu, V. 2008. Synthesis and characterization of ZnO–polymer nanocomposites. International Journal of Material Forming, 1(1), pp.767-770.
- Mazzolani, F. and Togni, S. 2013. Oral administration of a curcumin-phospholipid delivery system for the treatment of central serous chorioretinopathy: a 12-month follow-up study. Clinical Ophthalmology (Auckland, NZ), 7, p.939.

- Mehala, C. and Moorthy, M. 2008. Effect of Aloe vera and Curcuma longa (Turmeric) on carcass characteristics and biochemical parameters of broilers. International Journal of Poultry Science 7(9), pp.857-861.
- Mehring Jr, Arnon L., John H. Brumbaugh, and Harry W. Titus. "A comparison of the growth of chicks fed diets containing different quantities of zinc." Poultry Science 35, no. 4 (1956): 956-958.
- Meng, Q., Sun, S., Bai, Y., Luo, Z., Li, Z., Shi, B. and Shan, A. 2020. Effects of dietary resveratrol supplementation in sows on antioxidative status, myofiber characteristic and meat quality of offspring. Meat science, 167, p.108176.
- Miquel, J., Bernd, A., Sempere, J.M., Diaz-Alperi, J. and Ramirez, A. 2002. The curcuma antioxidants: pharmacological effects and prospects for future clinical use. A review. Archives of gerontology and geriatrics, 34(1), pp.37-46.
- Mondal, M.A., Yeasmin, T., Karim, R., Siddiqui, M.N., Nabi, S.R., Sayed, M.A. and Siddiky, M.N.A. 2015. Effect of dietary supplementation of turmeric (Curcuma longa) powder on the growth performance and carcass traits of broiler chicks. SAARC Journal of Agriculture, 13(1), pp.188-199.
- Mottet, A. and Tempio, G. 2017. Global poultry production: current state and future outlook and challenges. World's Poultry Science Journal, 73(2), pp.245-256.
- Muaz, K., Riaz, M., Akhtar, S., Park, S. and Ismail, A. 2018. Antibiotic residues in chicken meat: global prevalence, threats, and decontamination strategies: a review. Journal of food protection, 81(4), pp.619-627.
- Murray, R.K., Granner, D.K., Mayes, P.A. and Rodwell, V.W. 1991. The text book of Harper's biochemistry. 22 nd Appleton and Large. Los Altos, California.
- Namagirilakshmi, S. 2005. Turmeric (Curcuma longa) as nutraceutical to improve broiler performance. MV Sc. disease virus.
- Namagirilakshmi, S., Selvaraj, P., Nanjappan, K., Jayachandran, S. and Visha, P. 2010. Turmeric (Curcuma longa) as an alternative to in-feed antibiotic on the gut health of broiler chickens. Tamilnadu Journal of Veterinary and Animal Sciences, 6(3), pp.148-150.
- National Research Council .1994. Nutrient Requirements of Poultry, 9th edn., National Academy Press, Washington, DC.

- Navekar, R., Rafraf, M., Ghaffari, A., Asghari-Jafarabadi, M. and Khoshbaten, M. 2017. Turmeric supplementation improves serum glucose indices and leptin levels in patients with nonalcoholic fatty liver diseases. Journal of the American College of Nutrition, 36(4), pp.261-267..
- Niamsa, N. and Sittiwet, C. 2009. Antimicrobial activity of Curcuma longa aqueous extract. Journal of Pharmacology and Toxicology, 4(4), pp.173-177.
- Nouzarian, R., Tabeidian, S.A., Toghyani, M., Ghalamkari, G. and Toghyani, M. 2011. Effect of turmeric powder on performance, carcass traits, humoral immune responses, and serum metabolites in broiler chickens. Journal of Animal Feed Science, 20(3), pp.389-400.
- O'dell, B.L., Newberne, P.M. and Savage, J.E. 1958. Significance of dietary zinc for the growing chicken. The Journal of Nutrition, 65(4), pp.503-523.
- Okwu, D.E. and Josiah, C. 2006. Evaluation of the chemical composition of two Nigerian medicinal plants. African Journal of Biotechnology, 5(4), pp.357-361.
- Osawa, T., Sugiyama, Y., Inayoshi, M. and Kawakishi, S. 1995. Antioxidative activity of tetrahydrocurcuminoids. Bioscience, biotechnology, and biochemistry, 59(9), pp.1609-1612.
- Otto, G., Roehe, R., Looft, H., Thoelking, L. and Kalm, E. 2004. Comparison of different methods for determination of drip loss and their relationships to meat quality and carcass characteristics in pigs. Meat science, 68(3), pp.401-409.
- Panahi, Y., Kianpour, P., Mohtashami, R., Jafari, R., Simental-Mendía, L.E. and Sahebkar, A. 2017. Efficacy and safety of phytosomal curcumin in non-alcoholic fatty liver disease: a randomized controlled trial. Drug research, 67(04), pp.244-251.
- Panda, B. and Mahapatra, S.C. 1989. Common breeds of poultry. Poultry Production, pp.6-18.
- Paredes-López, O. and Delgado-Vargas, F. 2003. Natural colorants for food and nutraceutical uses. CRC Press LLC.
- Pathak, P., Dubey, P.P., Dash, S.K. and Chaudhary, M.L. 2015. Studies on growth and carcass traits of Aseel and Kadaknath chicken. Indian Journal of Poultry Science, 50(3), pp.327-328.

- Pierce, J., Shafer, B., Stalder, K. and Burkett, J. 2005. Nutritional means to lower trace mineral excretion from swine and poultry without compromising performance. Poultry Science 84, pp.1-6.
- Platel, K. and Srinivasan, K. 1996. Influence of dietary spices or their active principles on digestive enzymes of small intestinal mucosa in rats. International journal of food sciences and nutrition, 47(1), pp.55-59.
- Platel, K. and Srinivasan, K. 2004. Digestive stimulant action of spices: a myth or reality?. Indian Journal of Medical Research, 119(5), p.167.
- Prasad, A.S., Beck, F.W., Bao, B., Fitzgerald, J.T., Snell, D.C., Steinberg, J.D. and Cardozo, L.J. 2007. Zinc supplementation decreases incidence of infections in the elderly: effect of zinc on generation of cytokines and oxidative stress. The American journal of clinical nutrition, 85(3), pp.837-844.
- Rajput, N., Muhammad, N., Yan, R., Zhong, X. and Wang, T. 2013. Effect of dietary supplementation of curcumin on growth performance, intestinal morphology and nutrients utilization of broiler chicks. The Journal of Poultry Science, 50(1), pp.44-52.
- Rao, G.V. and Thomas, P.C. 1984. breed characteristics of Kadakanath breed of indigenous (Desi) chicken. Avian research.
- Raskar, S.S., Bhagat, D.J., Agare, H.R., Desai, B.G. and Chorage, N.T. 2019. Effect of feeding turmeric (Curcuma longa) powder on the meat quality of broilers. Pharma Innovation Journal, 8(1), pp.52-55.
- Reddy, K.M., Feris, K., Bell, J., Wingett, D.G., Hanley, C. and Punnoose, A. 2007. Selective toxicity of zinc oxide nanoparticles to prokaryotic and eukaryotic systems. Applied physics letters, 90(21).
- Rishikesh Jagza. 2018. Role of zinc in poultry nutrition and feeding; Kemin Industries South Asia Pvt Ltd
- Rivera-Espinoza, Y. and Muriel, P. 2009. Pharmacological actions of curcumin in liver diseases or damage. Liver International, 29(10), pp.1457-1466.
- Rossi, P., Rutz, F., Anciuti, M.A., Rech, J.L. and Zauk, N.H.F. 2007. Influence of graded levels of organic zinc on growth performance and carcass traits of broilers. Journal of Applied Poultry Research, 16(2), pp.219-225.

- Sahebkar, A., Cicero, A.F., Simental-Mendía, L.E., Aggarwal, B.B. and Gupta, S.C. 2016. Curcumin downregulates human tumor necrosis factor-α levels: A systematic review and meta-analysis ofrandomized controlled trials. Pharmacological research, 107, pp.234-242.
- Salim, H.M., Jo, C. and Lee, B.D. 2008. Zinc in broiler feeding and nutrition. Avian Biology Research, 1(1), pp.5-18.
- Samarasinghe, K., Wenk, C., Silva, K.F.S.T. and Gunasekera, J.M.D.M. 2003. Turmeric (Curcuma longa) root powder and mannanoligosaccharides as alternatives to antibiotics in broiler chicken diets. Asian-Australasian Journal of Animal Sciences, 16(10), pp.1495-1500.
- Sandoval, M., Henry, P.R., Littell, R.C., Miles, R.D., Butcher, G.D. and Ammerman, C.B. 1999. Effect of dietary zinc source and method of oral administration on performance and tissue trace mineral concentration of broiler chicks. Journal of animal Science, 77(7), pp.1788-1799.
- Sarker, Y.A., Hasan, M.M., Paul, T.K., Rashid, S.Z., Alam, M.N. and Sikder, M.H. 2018. Screening of antibiotic residues in chicken meat in Bangladesh by thin layer chromatography. Journal of Advanced Veterinary and Animal Research, 5(2), pp.140-145.
- Sattar, S., Hassan, M.M., Islam, S.K.M., Alam, M., Al Faruk, M.S., Chowdhury, S. and Saifuddin, A.K.M. 2014. Antibiotic residues in broiler and layer meat in Chittagong district of Bangladesh. Veterinary World, 7(9).
- Sawai, J. 2003. Quantitative evaluation of antibacterial activities of metallic oxide powders (ZnO, MgO and CaO) by conductimetric assay. Journal of microbiological methods, 54(2), pp.177-182.
- Scalbert, A. 1991. Antimicrobial properties of tannins. Phytochemistry, 30(12), pp.3875-3883.
- Seo, K.I., Choi, M.S., Jung, U.J., Kim, H.J., Yeo, J., Jeon, S.M. and Lee, M.K. 2008. Effect of curcumin supplementation on blood glucose, plasma insulin, and glucose homeostasis related enzyme activities in diabetic db/db mice. Molecular nutrition & food research, 52(9), pp.995-1004.

- Sharma, M., Manoharlal, R., Negi, A.S. and Prasad, R. 2010. Synergistic anticandidal activity of pure polyphenol curcumin I in combination with azoles and polyenes generates reactive oxygen species leading to apoptosis. FEMS yeast research, 10(5), pp.570-578.
- Sharma, M., Manoharlal, R., Puri, N. and Prasad, R. 2010. Antifungal curcumin induces reactive oxygen species and triggers an early apoptosis but prevents hyphae development by targeting the global repressor TUP1 in Candida albicans. Bioscience reports, 30(6), pp.391-404.
- Sharma, R., Sehrawat, R., Ahlawat, S., Sharma, V., Parmar, A., Thakur, M.S., Mishra, A.K. and Tantia, M.S. 2022. An attempt to valorize the only black meat chicken breed of India by delineating superior functional attributes of its meat. Scientific Reports, 12(1), pp.1-12.
- Sieo, C.C., Abdullah, N., Tan, W.S. and Ho, Y.W. 2005. Influence of β-glucanaseproducing Lactobacillus strains on intestinal characteristics and feed passage rate of broiler chickens. Poultry science, 84(5), pp.734-741.
- Singh RV, Singh DP. 2004. Possibilities of exploitation of indigenous poultry germplasm. Proceedings of National Symposium on Livestock biodiversity vis-avis resource exploitation: An introspection, 11-12 February, Karnal, India. pp; 21-30.
- Soni, K.B., Rajan, A. and Kuttan, R. 1992. Reversal of aflatoxin induced liver damage by turmeric and curcumin. Cancer Letters, 66(2), pp.115-121.
- Sugiharto, S. 2017. Effect of turmeric extract on blood parameters, feed efficiency and abdominal fat content in broilers. Journal of Indonesian Tropical Animal Agriculture. 36:21–26.
- Sumida, S., Tanaka, K., Kitao, H. and Nakadomo, F. 1989. Exercise-induced lipid peroxidation and leakage of enzymes before and after vitamin E supplementation. The International journal of biochemistry, 21(8), pp.835-838.
- Sundari, S., Zuprizal, Z., Yuwanta, T. and Martien, R. 2014. The effect nanocapsule of turmeric extracts in rations on nutrient digestibility of broiler chickens. Animal Production, 16(2), pp.107-113.

- Surojanametakul, V., Satmalee, P., Saengprakai, J., Siliwan, D. and Wattanasiritham, L. 2010. Preparation of curcuminoid powder from turmeric root (Curcuma longa Linn) for food ingredient use. Agriculture and Natural Resources, 44(1), pp.123-130.
- Swain, P.S., Rao, S.B., Rajendran, D., Dominic, G. and Selvaraju, S. 2016. Nano zinc, an alternative to conventional zinc as animal feed supplement: A review. Animal Nutrition, 2(3), pp.134-141.
- Tayyem, R.F., Heath, D.D., Al-Delaimy, W.K. and Rock, C.L. 2006. Curcumin content of turmeric and curry powders. Nutrition and cancer, 55(2), pp.126-131.
- Tomei, L., Altamura, S., Paonessa, G., De Francesco, R. and Migliaccio, G. 2005. Review HCV Antiviral Resistance: The Impact of in vitro Studies on the Development of Antiviral Agents Targeting the Viral NS5B Polymerase. Antiviral chemistry and chemotherapy, 16(4), pp.225-245.
- Tsuda, T. 2018. Curcumin as a functional food-derived factor: degradation products, metabolites, bioactivity, and future perspectives. Food & function, 9(2), pp.705-714.
- Ungphaiboon, S., Supavita, T., Singchangchai, P., Sungkarak, S., Rattanasuwan, P. and Itharat, A. 2005. Study on antioxidant and antimicrobial activities of turmeric clear liquid soap for wound treatment of HIV patients. Songklanakarin Journal of Science and Technology, 27(2), pp.269-578.
- Ürüşan, H. and BÖLÜKBAŞI, C. 2020. The Influence of Turmeric Powder (Curcuma longa) on Fatty Acid Composition and Shelf Life of Broiler Chicken Meat. Alinteri Journal of Agriculture Science, 35(1), pp.29-35.
- Ürüsan, H. and Bölükbasi, Ş.C. 2017. Effects of dietary supplementation levels of turmeric powder (Curcuma longa) on performance, carcass characteristics and gut microflora in broiler chickens. JAPS: Journal of Animal & Plant Sciences, 27(3).
- Wala J., Ransaleleh T., Indyah W. Merri R. 2016. J. Zootek, 36 405-416 Masni, Ismanto
  A, Begis M. 2010 Puspitasari I, Nuhriwangsa A M P dan Swastika W 2013 J
  Teknologi Pertanian, 6 7-14 Rations on Nutrient Digestibility of Broiler Chickens.
- Wang, D., Huang, H., Zhou, L., Li, W., Zhou, H., Hou, G., Liu, J. and Hu, L. 2015. Effects of dietary supplementation with turmeric rhizome extract on growth

performance, carcass characteristics, antioxidant capability, and meat quality of Wenchang broiler chickens. Italian Journal of Animal Science, 14(3), p.3870.

- Wang, X., Fosmire, G.J., Gay, C.V. and Leach Jr, R.M. 2002. Short-term zinc deficiency inhibits chondrocyte proliferation and induces cell apoptosis in the epiphyseal growth plate of young chickens. The Journal of nutrition, 132(4), pp.665-673.
- Watson, R.R. ed., 2015. Foods and dietary supplements in the prevention and treatment of disease in older adults. Academic press.
- Wei, Z., Liu, N., Tantai, X., Xing, X., Xiao, C., Chen, L. and Wang, J. 2019. The effects of curcumin on the metabolic parameters of non-alcoholic fatty liver disease: a meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. Hepatology international, 13(3), pp.302-313.
- Wen, M., Wu, B., Zhao, H., Liu, G., Chen, X., Tian, G., Cai, J. and Jia, G. 2019. Effects of dietary zinc on carcass traits, meat quality, antioxidant status, and tissue zinc accumulation of Pekin ducks. Biological Trace Element Research, 190(1), pp.187-196.
- Williams, P. 2001. The use of essential oils and their compounds in poultry nutrition. World poultry, 17, pp.14-15.
- Wise, R., Hart, T., Cars, O., Streulens, M., Helmuth, R., Huovinen, P. and Sprenger, M. 1998. Antimicrobial resistance. Bmj, 317(7159), pp.609-610.
- Wu, D.L., Liu, N. and Ye, Y. 2015. Zingiberaceae Resource of China. Huazhong University of Science and Technology Press: Wuhan, China.
- Wu, X., Liu, H., Liu, J., Haley, K.N., Treadway, J.A., Larson, J.P., Ge, N., Peale, F. and Bruchez, M.P. 2003. Immunofluorescent labeling of cancer marker Her2 and other cellular targets with semiconductor quantum dots. Nature biotechnology, 21(1), pp.41-46.
- Wuthi-Udomlert, M., Grisanapan, W., Luanratana, O. and Caichompoo, W. 2000. Antifungal activity of Curcuma longa grown in Thailand. The Southeast Asian journal of tropical medicine and public health, 31, pp.178-182.
- Yu, Z.P., Le, G.W. and Shi, Y.H. 2005. Effect of zinc sulphate and zinc methionine on growth, plasma growth hormone concentration, growth hormone receptor and

insulin-like growth factor-I gene expression in mice. Clinical and experimental pharmacology and physiology, 32(4), pp.273-278.

- Yuwanta, T. and Martien, R. 2014. The effect nanocapsule of turmeric extracts in rations on nutrient digestibility of broiler chickens. Journal of Animal Production, 16(2), pp.107-113.
- Zhang, J., Hu, Z., Lu, C., Bai, K., Zhang, L. and Wang, T, 2015. Effect of various levels of dietary curcumin on meat quality and antioxidant profile of breast muscle in broilers. Journal of agricultural and food chemistry, 63(15), pp.3880-3886.
- Zhang, L., Zhang, J., Yan, E., He, J., Zhong, X., Zhang, L., Wang, C. and Wang, T, 2020. Dietary supplemented curcumin improves meat quality and antioxidant status of intrauterine growth retardation growing pigs via Nrf2 signal pathway. Animals, 10(3), p.539.
- Zorofchian Moghadamtousi, S., Abdul Kadir, H., Hassandarvish, P., Tajik, H., Abubakar, S. and Zandi, K. 2014. A review on antibacterial, antiviral, and antifungal activity of curcumin. BioMed research international, 2014.
- Zorofchian Moghadamtousi, S., Hajrezaei, M., Abdul Kadir, H., & Zandi, K.(2013). Loranthus micranthus Linn.: Biological Activities and Phytochemistry. Evidencebased complementary and alternative medicine : eCAM, 2013, 273712.

# Appendix

## **Cost benefit:**

### Control group (T0)-

Live weight of each bird-1.0065 kg

Feed intake per bird-2.129 kg

Feed cost per kg-37 taka

Total feed cost per bird=2.129\*37= 78.773 taka

Cost of vaccine and labor per bird= 251 taka

Total cost per bird= Total feed cost per bird+ Cost of vaccine and labor per bird

= (78.773 + 251) taka = 329.773 taka

Total net income per bird=live weight\*price per kg bird

= (1.0065\*350 taka) = 349.18 taka

Net profit= Total net income per bird - Total cost per bird

= (349.18-329.773) taka= 19.41 taka

### Dietary group of 1 % turmeric powder (T1)-

Live weight of each bird-1.06 kg

Feed intake per bird-2.002 kg

Feed cost per kg-39 taka

Total feed cost per bird=2.002\*39= 78.078 taka

Cost of vaccine and labor per bird= 251 taka

Total cost per bird= Total feed cost per bird+ Cost of vaccine and labor per bird

= (78.078+251) taka = 329.078 taka

Total net income per bird=live weight\*price per kg bird

= (1.06 \* 350 taka)=368.2 taka

Net profit= Total net income per bird - Total cost per bird

= (368.2-329.078) taka= 39.12 taka

#### Dietary group of 1.5 % turmeric powder (T2)-

Live weight of each bird-1.105 kg

Feed intake per bird-1.7739 kg

Feed cost per kg-41 taka

Total feed cost per bird=1.7739\*41=72.7299 taka

Cost of vaccine and labor per bird= 251 taka

Total cost per bird= Total feed cost per bird+ Cost of vaccine and labor per bird

= (72.7299 + 251) taka = 323.7299 taka

Total net income per bird=live weight\*price per kg bird

= (1.105 \* 350 taka) = 382.08 taka

Net profit= Total net income per bird - Total cost per bird

= (382.08.2-323.7299) taka= 58.35 taka

#### Dietary group of 1 % turmeric powder with 0.5% Zinc (T3)-

Live weight of each bird-0.99 kg

Feed intake per bird-1.97 kg

Feed cost per kg-42 taka

Total feed cost per bird=(0.99 \* 42)= 82.74 taka

Cost of vaccine and labor per bird= 251 taka

Total cost per bird= Total feed cost per bird+ Cost of vaccine and labor per bird

= (82.74 + 251) taka = 333.74 taka

Total net income per bird=live weight\*price per kg bird

= (0.99 \* 350 taka) = 343.94 taka

Net profit= Total net income per bird - Total cost per bird

= (343.942-333.74) taka= 10.19 taka

#### Dietary group of 1.5% % turmeric powder with 0.5% Zinc (T4)-

Live weight of each bird-1.08kg

Feed intake per bird-1.702 kg

Feed cost per kg-44 taka

Total feed cost per bird=1.702 \*44= 74.88 8taka

Cost of vaccine and labor per bird= 251 taka

Total cost per bird= Total feed cost per bird+ Cost of vaccine and labor per bird

= (74.88 +251) taka =325.888 taka

Total net income per bird=live weight\*price per kg bird

= (1.08 \* 350 taka) =363.06 taka

Net profit= Total net income per bird - Total cost per bird

= (363.06 -325.888) taka= 32.07 taka

# **Brief Biography**

This is Dr. Kazi Asmany, daughter of Kazi Ashaduzzaman and Bilkis Begum from Belabo upazila under Narsingdi district of Bangladesh. Kazi Asmany passed the Secondary School Certificate Examination in 2010 from Harisangan high school,Belabo,Narsingdi and then Higher Secondary Certificate Examination in 2012 from Gazipur Govt. Women College, Gazipur. She obtained her B.Sc. (Hons.) in Veterinary medicinefrom the Faculty of Veterinary medicine at ChattogramVeterinary and Animal Sciences University, Chattogram, Bangladesh. Now, she is acandidate for the degree of Master of Science in Animal and poultry nutrition under the Department of Animal science and poultry nutrition, Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU). She has an immense interest to work in improving the health status of people through proper guidance and suggestions and to create awareness among people about food safety and nutrition as well as animal welfare. With her best knowledge and expertise, she hopes to deliver competent veterinary medical treatment and sustains the norms of professionalism in the future.